
Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
Tuesday, June 4, 2019, 6:00pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Doug Theroux.
2. Approval of the Agenda.
3. Approval of the Minutes from the March 5 and April 2, 2019 Meetings of the Board.
4. Discussion Related to a Proposed Conditional Zoning District on the Property Commonly Known

as 108 Church Street.
5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council on the

Aforementioned Conditional Zoning District.
6. Proposed 2019 Comprehensive Land Use Plan Draft.

A. Review and Recommendation on Goals and Priorities.
B. Review and Recommendation on CLUP Text.
C. Review of Possible Dates for Joint Meeting(s) with Town Council.

7. Any other Business to Come Before the Board.
8. Adjournment.

1



Agenda Item 3 
Minutes 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2



Page 1 of 5 April 2, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Minutes – Tuesday, April 2, 2019 

The Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly meeting at 
6:00pm on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 within the Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Board Member Steve Warren, Alternate Board Members John Chase and 
Tom Balestrieri, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson and Planning Director James 
Eller. Vice-Chairman Gary Burge and Board Members Catherine Cordell and Peter Stanz were absent.  

1. Call to Order.

Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

2. Approval of the Agenda.

Mr. Balestrieri motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Chase seconded and all voted unanimously. 

3. Approval of the Minutes from the February 12 and March 5, 2019 Meetings of the Board.

Mr. Balestrieri motioned to approve the February 12 minutes as presented and the March 5 minutes as amended. 
Such amendments include the correction of a grammatical error on page 1 of 3 and the correction showing Mr. 
John Bowen speaking in favor of the proposed conditional zoning district at 37 Brown Street. Mr. Warren 
seconded and all voted unanimously. 

4. Discussion Related to an Application for a Conditional Zoning District on the Property Commonly
Known as 37 Brown Street.

Mr. Eller reviewed the application and proposal from discussions held the previous month and noted the parking 
configuration amendment to the site plan and presented the Board with an executed water allocation for the 
project which had been finalized in the preceding days.  

Ms. Jackson presented the Board with a proposed statement of reasonableness and recommendation for 
consideration. 15 conditions were proposed for the property in conjunction with a proposed approval by Town 
Council and are as follows. Said statement was discussed by the Board. 

April 3, 2019 

Mayor Al Root and 
Weaverville Town Council 

Re: Margaret S. Ottofey (through agent Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding Group, LLC) 
Conditional Zoning District Application for 37 Brown Street 
Old Boy’s Dormitory – Weaver College 
Statement of Reasonableness and Recommendation 

3



Page 2 of 5 April 2, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

Dear Mayor and Council – 

On 5 March 2019 and 2 April 2019, pursuant to Section 36-84 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the Planning and Zoning 
Board reviewed the application for a Conditional Zoning District that was submitted by Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding 
Group, LLC, authorized agent for property owner Margaret S. Ottofey, on January 31, 2019. 

This project would refurbish and renovate the old Weaver College boy’s dormitory located at 37 Brown Street into a 16-
unit multi-unit residential building while maintaining the historic nature and aesthetics of the building. The property is 
under single ownership, is currently zoned R-2, and is bounded by Brown Street to the east/southeast, College Street to the 
northeast, and private properties to the north, west and southwest. A site plan is attached which contains survey data.  

The maximum number of units in this project is 16, which is consistent with the number of units that the table of 
dimensional requirements would allowed within the R-2 zoning district.  The existing historic building is compliant with the 
setback requirements for the R-2 zoning district and the building height is either in compliance with R-2 zoning or is 
allowed as an existing nonconforming structure.  

At these meetings the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the project for compliance with all of the items enumerated in 
Section 36-84(d). The Planning and Zoning Board also analyzed the project’s reasonableness in light of the Town’s 
comprehensive land use plan and other land use policies and found that the project is reasonable in light of the Town’s 
land use regulations including specifically the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the stated goals and objectives 
in that Plan including those provisions which encourage a variety of housing opportunities, and consistency with the 
Town’s underlying R-2 zoning district which was designed and implemented for residential use, including a mix of single 
family and multi-family residential options. 

After careful review of this application and the materials submitted, the Planning and Zoning Board unanimously 
recommends the approval of the application for a Conditional Zoning District for the project as reflected on the attached 
site plan, historic elevations, and conceptual floor plans, subject to the following conditions: 

a. The project is to be constructed consistent with the preliminary site plan and historic elevation submitted by the
applicant, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The height of the building
may not exceed its current height which has been established as 40 feet at the roof ridge as measured from the
front sidewalk at the front steps. It is recognized that a fire escape must be constructed exterior to the existing
building. A rear entrance from the parking area must be provided with related improvements to facilitate access to
the building from the parking areas located at the rear and side of the building.

b. The maximum number of units allowed is 16.
c. The floor plans that are attached hereto are conceptual in nature and are allowed to be changed as long as the

number of units does not exceed 16. Sitting areas, mailrooms, laundry facilities, storage areas, and other uses
which support the residential units are allowed as long as they are housed within the existing building or garage
area. Commercial uses, such as restaurants and shops are not allowed on the property.

d. The exterior of the main building must be maintained in such a manner as is consistent with the historic aesthetics
of the building as shown on the original elevation submitted with the application and attached hereto, including
but not limited to the original façade and old brickwork. The exterior of the garage building must be repaired with
a masonry stucco finish.

e. Sidewalks are not required within the project or along Brown Street or College Street.
f. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private driveways/streets shall be constructed to

Weaverville’s driveway/street standards, except that the historic horseshoe driveway in the front of the building off
of Brown Street is not required to meet those standards. The covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to
this project, if any, must include language stating that the streets are private and part of the common area of the
project, and as such will be maintained through the assessments for common expenses.

g. A minimum of 32 off-street parking spaces, with a minimum size of 9 feet by 18 feet, must be provided and must be
constructed and maintained in an all-weather condition regardless of surface materials used.

h. One freestanding sign at the entrance of the project is allowed but such sign must not be larger than 50 square feet
of surface area per side of the sign, for a maximum aggregate of 100 square feet of surface area, and must comply
with the other standards contained in Article VIII of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances.

4



Page 3 of 5 April 2, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

i. Any and all outdoor lighting that is to be installed must comply with Town Code Section 36-26, except as
specifically provided in this paragraph. All outdoor lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts that are no
more than 16 feet tall. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all outdoor lighting shall be used to minimize light
trespass on to adjoining residential properties.  The outdoor lighting plan must be submitted and approved in
conjunction with a zoning permit application.

j. Landscaping must comply with Article VI of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A landscaping plan
must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application.

k. Grading must comply with Article XV of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A grading plan must be
submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application. Compliance with Buncombe County
sedimentation and erosion control standards is also required.

l. Landscape buffers or privacy fences or walls between the property and adjoining properties are not required but
are allowed.

m. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the public streets or the shoulders of
those public streets. All dirt, mud, construction materials, or other debris deposited on the public streets as a
result of construction activities must be removed by the contractor or owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Code
Section 22-48.

n. All construction must be completed within 24 months of the issuance of the first permit allowing work to begin on
the property. Upon request of the owner/developer, Town Council may, in its sole discretion, grant such extension
as Town Council deems appropriate under the circumstances.

o. Section 36-84 shall continue to govern the project including, but not limited, to those provisions regarding
issuance of zoning permits, modifications, appeals, and final plat approval.

The height of the existing building had not been measured at the time that the Planning and Zoning Board took action on 
the recommendation. This information is to be provided by the property owner or her agent and should be included in 
paragraph 1 of the conditions prior to Town Council adoption. 

While the unit density of the project (16 units) is consistent with the number of units allowed under the table of dimensional 
requirements, a concern was shared by one of the Planning and Zoning Board members related to the density that is 
proposed for this project. 

Whether the main driveways/streets are to be constructed with pervious (gravel) or impervious (pavement) material has yet 
to be determined. Some members of the Planning and Zoning Board indicated a preference for an impervious or paved 
surface in order to reduce the possibility of erosion and washing of the driveways/streets and parking spaces and possible 
impact on the public streets and related safety issues. The property owner is likely to employ engineers that will provide 
recommendations on the surface material for the driveways/streets and a grading plan must be submitted with a zoning 
permit application.  

To support the condition stated in paragraph 4 concerning sidewalks, it is noted that sidewalks are not required for 
projects that do not involve new construction. As this project is a renovation project, sidewalks would normally not be 
required. In addition, the existing residential neighborhood in which the project is located does not have sidewalks and 
sidewalks along the Brown Street and/or College Street frontage of the property would not be in character with the existing 
neighborhood, including the subdivision known as Lakeside Meadows which lies to the south of the property and does not 
have sidewalks. The closest sidewalk to the project is located approximately 500 feet north at the intersection of College 
Street and Lakeshore Drive. 

To support the condition stated in paragraph 11 concerning buffering and fencing, it is noted that buffers between 
adjoining properties is not required by any residential use within the R-1, R-2 or R-3 zoning districts. 

A traffic analysis was not conducted as Town staff determined that the peak hour trips would not trigger the requirement 
stated in Town Code Section 36-25.    

Under Town Code Section 36-84(i) Town Council has the discretion to require a performance guarantee to guarantee the 
completion of the conditions approved with the conditional zoning district and to determine the amount of such guarantee 
should Town Council wish to require one.  

5



Page 4 of 5 April 2, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

It is also noted that a public involvement meeting required by Sec. 36-84(e)(3) has not yet been scheduled. Town Council is 
reminded that it cannot hold its public hearing on the application until such public involvement meeting has been held.  

While recognizing that it is outside of the scope of the Planning and Zoning Board’s review of the application, a suggestion 
was made that any historical artifacts found within the existing building might be of interest to the Dry Ridge Museum and 
the agent of the owner seemed interested in donating such materials, if found, to the Dry Ridge Museum. 

Please let me know if you need anything further from us on this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Doug Theroux 
Planning and Zoning Board Chairman 

cc: James Eller, Town Planner 
Selena Coffey, Town Manager 
Jennifer Jackson, Town Attorney 
Thomas Wolfe, Saba Holding Group, LLC 

5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related to the
Aforementioned Conditional Zoning District.

Chairman Theroux motioned to adopt the statement of reasonableness and recommendation to Town Council 
and finding the project consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan with the conditions applied. 
Mr. Balestrieri seconded and all voted unanimously. 

6. Discussion Related to an Initial Zoning Request of R-12 for the Property Commonly Known as 135
Monticello Road.

Mr. Eller presented the Board with the particulars of the application including a staff report establishing the 
acreage present for the parcel at +/- 19.5 acres with a buildout capacity of approximately 234 units given the 
desired R-12 zoning at 12 units per acre.  Said report also included a statement suggesting the desired zoning of 
R-12 would comply with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan. 

7. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related on the
Aforementioned Proposed Zoning map Amendment.

Mr. Warren motioned to send a favorable recommendation to Town Council on the proposed zoning of R-12 for 
the property commonly known as 135 Monticello Road finding the initial zoning compliant with the Town’s 
comprehensive land use plan. Mr. Chase seconded and all voted unanimously.  

8. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board.

Mr. Eller noted that as per municipal ordinance the public information session for the proposed 37 Brown Street 
conditional zoning district would be scheduled for May 7, 2019 from 4-6pm in advance of the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Planning and Zoning Board. 

Ms. Jackson noted that code book updates had been received from Municode. 

9. Adjournment.

Mr. Chase motioned to adjourn. Mr. Warren seconded and all voted unanimously. 

6



Page 5 of 5 April 2, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

_____________________________ 
Doug Theroux, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Deputy Town Clerk 

7



Page 1 of 2 May 7, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Minutes – Tuesday, May 7, 2019 

The Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly meeting at 
6:00pm on Tuesday, May 7, 2019 within the Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Board Members Catherine Cordell, Peter Stanz and Steve Warren, Alternate 
Board Members John Chase and Tom Balestrieri, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer 
Jackson and Planning Director James Eller. Vice-Chairman Gary Burge was absent.  

1. Call to Order.

Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

Upon calling the meeting to order Mr. Theroux noted that Ms. Cordell would be serving as acting chairman for 
the meeting. 

2. Approval of the Agenda.

Mr. Stanz motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Theroux seconded and all voted unanimously. 

3. Discussion Related to the Proposed 2019 Comprehensive Land Use Plan Draft.

Chairman Cordell noted that the purpose of the meeting would be for the Board to offer feedback on the 
proposed comprehensive land use plan (CLUP) which had been distributed by staff. Each member of the Board 
offered observations and suggestions to strengthen the CLUP.  Consensus was gained that typos and similar 
errors would be givn to staff outside of the meeting to preserve time. Items discussed were economic 
development, water availability, preservation of the R-1 zoning district and how to set meaningful goals. 

Mayor Root spoke to the Board and suggested that Town Council would find it useful for the Board to prioritize 
the stated goals for their consideration. Consensus was gained on a scoring system suggested by Ms. Jackson 
and that the Board would have their scores to staff within two weeks to afford time for processing in advance of 
the next meeting.  

Staff is to incorporate comments provided by the Board into the proposed CLUP and implement a CLUP stated 
goals and action plan with priorities for the Board’s consideration at their next regularly scheduled meeting. 

4. Adjournment.

Mr. Chase motioned to adjourn. Mr. Warren seconded and all voted unanimously. 

8



Page 2 of 2 May 7, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

_____________________________ 
Doug Theroux, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Deputy Town Clerk 

9



Agenda Items 4&5 
Proposed Conditional Zoning District – 108 Church Street 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

10



North Hill Ventures
9 W. Walnut St, Ste 3B
Asheville, NC 28801

05.06.2019

A new 20 lot residential subdivision consisting of 1300-1450 sqft single family homes.

828.649.7658 108 Church St

973298759200000

2.87 acres R-1

4668/0384

Member                                                          05.06.2019

11



NA

12



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B
Asheville, NC 28801

828.649.7658

CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT APPLICATION  
108 Church St Subdivision  
Additional and Supplemental Information  
05.06.2019  

Project Phasing 

We propose to complete the project in two distinct phases: 

• Phase 1: Construction of the homes along Church St including installation of necessary 
grading and sewer infrastructure serving those homes 

• Phase 2: Construct new road, extend water main and complete remaining infrastructure to 
serve lower course of homes and construction of the remaining homes 

Expected completion date of the project: 

Assuming approval is granted in August, 2019, we expect: 

• Completion of Phase 1 in August, 2020 

• Completion of Phase 2 in November, 2021 

Placement of Utilities 

The homes will be served by the following utilities: 

• Sewer - Sewer connections to Buncombe MSD per submitted drawings and attached 
sewer allocation letter 

• Water - Water connections to Town of Weaverville Water System per submitted drawings 
• Electric - New underground service installed to each home. 
• Telephone and Cable - New underground service installed to each home. 
• Gas - Natural gas is currently not available at this location.  

13



14



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

General Statement and Intent of Proposed Homes 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information 
05.06.2019

Design 
With every home we build, North Hill is highly focused on the design elements.  Features 
like high ceilings, open spaces, authentic materials, and lots of natural light characterize 
our builds.  A well-designed home allows us to feel good about the space we inhabit, 
proud of its appearance, and thankful for the positive influence on our daily lives. 

Value 
We work hard to include as many features in our homes as possible.  Our equation is not 
“How cheap can we make it and still get the asking price?”.  It is, and always will be, 
“How much can we add without raising the cost?”.  We specify every component in our 
homes with quality, durability, efficiency and aesthetics in mind. 

Obtainability 

North Hill focuses on building homes that are obtainble for a wide range of buyers.  We 
believe our area has a tremendous need for well designed and well built homes that are 
offered at a price that allows buyers to enter into home ownership. 

Specific Traits of Proposed Homes on Church Street 
In general the homes we are proposing would have the following traits.  

1.) Homes priced in the range of $265,000-$295,000 
2.) Most homes would be 3 bedrooms and 2 1/2 baths with 1300-1400 square feet 
of floor space 
3.) Garages or carports included with certain models. Designated parking for   
other models 
4.) Based on the natural terrain of the site, most floor plans would feature a main   
level with  a daylighted lower level to fit the topography and help preserve views for  
all neighbors 

Conceptual Information 
Please see the attached pages for more information and conceptual ideas about the type 
of homes North Hill is proposing for the project.   

15



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

Common Exterior Features of a North Hill Home 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information 
05.06.2019

Architectural 
Composite 
Shingles

Spacious 
Front 

Porches

Fiber-Cement 
Lap or Board & 
Batten Siding

Painted 
Composite Clad 

Windows

Architecturally 
Current  

Interpretations  
of Classic Forms

Stucco 
Foundations Siding Colors Selected to 

Coordinate Throughout 
the Development

Large Windows 
Maximizing 

Inside/Outside 
Connections 

16



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

CLS

CLS

Open to Below

Master suite 
on main

Washer/Dryer

Dining

Efficient  
Kitchens

Storage

Open 
Living 
Room

Bedroom 
Two

Bedroom 
Three

Mechanical 
and 

Storage

Vaulted  
Ceilings

Open 
Stairwells

Attic 
Storage 
Above

Full Bath

Common Interior Floorplan Features of a North Hill Home 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information 
05.06.2019

Secondary Floor Primary Floor

Outdoor 
Living 
Spaces

17



Examples of General Architectural Styling of Neighborhood 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information - 05.06.2019

9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

18



CHURCH STREET EXT.S.R. 1721
(60' R/W)

10
'

10
'

5'
5'

50'

10
4.1

1'

40'

80
.41

'

5'5'

10
'

10
'

44'

10
5.0

8'

34'

81
.95

'

18
'

45
' R

OW

60
'

20'

28' r

28' r

20' r

20' r

MH

MH

MH

#8
0.11 ac.
4,951 sf

#1
0.15 ac.
6,380 sf

#2
0.12 ac.
5,235 sf

#3
0.12 ac.
5,223 sf

#4
0.12 ac.
5,212 sf

#5
0.12 ac.
5,200 sf

#6
0.12 ac.
5,150 sf

#7
0.12 ac.
5,051 sf

#10
0.10 ac.
4,396 sf

#13
0.11 ac.
4,679 sf

#16
0.11 ac.
4,669 sf

#17
0.10 ac.
4,537 sf

#19
0.10 ac.
4,421 sf #18

0.10 ac.
4,443 sf #15

0.11 ac.
4,698 sf

#14
0.11 ac.
4,714 sf

#12
0.10 ac.
4,323 sf

#11
0.10 ac.
4,289 sf

#9
0.11 ac.
4,823 sf

#20
0.11 ac.
4,937 sf

STORMWATER
BMP

PHASE 1

PHASE 1

10' STORMWATER
EASEMENT

STOP SIGN (TYP.)

NO
RT

H 
HI

LL
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

5/6
/20

19

PROJECT NAME:

SHEET TITLE:

5/6/2019
ISSUE No. A-1

NHV001
DATE:

PROJECT NO.

# A

of

SHEET NO.

RE
VI

SI
ON

 D
ES

CR
IP

TI
ON

Iss
ue

 1 
- S

ub
mi

tta
l to

 T
ow

n o
f W

ea
ve

rvi
lle

DA
TE

for

Town of Weaverville
Buncombe County, NC

HI
GH

 C
OU

NT
RY

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

, P
.C

.
41

 C
LA

YT
ON

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 30

0
AS

HE
VI

LL
E,

 N
OR

TH
 C

AR
OL

IN
A 

28
80

1
T:

 82
8.2

30
.45

11
F:

 82
8.3

48
.50

40

NC
 F

IR
M 

NO
.: C

-3
34

7

CH
UR

CH
 S

TR
EE

T 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

CHURCH STREET
SUBDIVISION

1

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 P
LA

NS
 F

OR

To
wn

 of
 W

ea
ve

rvi
lle

Bu
nc

om
be

 C
ou

nty
, N

or
th 

Ca
ro

lin
a

NHV001
CHURCH STREET SUBDIVISION

SITE PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1" = 30'

30' 60' 90'30' 15'

C-1

PROJECT NOTES:

OWNER: APPLICANT:
Donald Terry Burnette    North Hilll Ventures
108 Church Street    9 W. Walnut Street, Ste. 3B
Weaverville, NC 28787    Asheville, NC 28801

   T: 828-243-5557

ENGINEER:
High Country Engineering, PC (C-3347)
41 Clayton Street, Suite 300
Asheville, North Carolina 28801
T:828-230-4511
Contact: Michael R. Goforth, PE
Email: mgoforth@hcepc.net

1. Property located in Weaverville, North Carolina.  Property address is 108 Church Street, NC 28787

2. PIN NUMBER: 9732-98-7592

3. Zoning: R-1 by the Town of Weaverville.

4. Deed Book: 4668 and Page 384.

5. Proposed use is for a subdivision.

6. Project Coordinates: -82..570999° W, 35.699557° N

7. The receiving water course for this project is a Unnamed Tributary to Gill Branch.  At the confluence,
Gill Branch, Stream Index 6-87-12, is a Class C water as classified by NCDENR.

8. Total tract contains over ±2.87 acres/disturbed area= ±2.87  acres. Total new impervious area =
±0.46  acres (2.3%).

9. Boundary & Topographical information obtained from survey by Bobby C. McMahan, PLS # L-2475
of McMahan & Associates, PA and dated February 12, 2009.

10. Contour interval is 2 feet.

11. This property is shown on F.I.R.M. panel number 3700973200J, dated January 6, 2010 and is not
located within a special flood hazard zone "X" or "AE".

12. The location of underground utilities shown is approximate based on surface field evidence and
information supplied by utility agencies.  The survey makes no certification as to the completeness of
the locations shown heron.  Appropriate utility companies should be contacted for verification of
locations prior to any construction activity.

13. The contractor shall verify the invert elevations of all existing storm and sanitary sewer structures
prior to commencement of storm and sanitary sewer construction.

14. Contractor shall notify the engineer and owner/developer of any information found in the field that is
different from what is shown on these design plans.

NOT TO SCALE
LOCATION MAP

N

PROJECT LOCATION

TO
 A

SH
EV

ILL
E

NATURAL GAS, TELEPHONE, ELECTRIC, AND CABLE LINES ARE TO
BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND WHERE AVAILABLE.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B10C37E-CA72-4700-857A-08041CCDFB84

19



CHURCH STREET EXT.S.R. 1721
(60' R/W)

10
'

10
'

5'
5'

50'

10
4.1

1'

40'

80
.41

'

5'5'

10
'

10
'

44'

10
5.0

8'

34'

81
.95

'

18
'

45
' R

OW

60
'

20'

28' r

28' r

20' r

20' r

MH

MH

MH

#8
0.11 ac.
 4,951sf

#1
0.15 ac.
 6,380sf

#2
0.12 ac.
 5,235sf

#3
0.12 ac.
 5,223sf

#4
0.12 ac.
 5,212sf

#5
0.12 ac.
 5,200sf

#6
0.12 ac.
 5,150sf

#7
0.12 ac.
 5,051sf

#10
0.10 ac.
 4,396sf

#13
0.11 ac.
 4,679sf

#16
0.11 ac.
 4,669sf

#17
0.10 ac.
 4,537sf

#19
0.10 ac.
 4,421sf

#18
0.10 ac.
 4,443sf

#15
0.11 ac.
 4,698sf

#14
0.11 ac.
 4,714sf

#12
0.10 ac.
 4,323sf

#11
0.10 ac.
 4,289sf

#9
0.11 ac.
 4,823sf

#20
0.11 ac.
 4,937sf

PHASE 1

PHASE 1

10' STORMWATER
EASTMENT

1

5/6/2019

NHV001

1

CL
IE

NT
:

DR
AW

IN
G 

TI
TL

E:

DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWING TITLE:

SHEET NO.

of
3 2 1

DA
TE

:
NO

.

RE
VI

SI
ON

S

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

NO
RT

H 
HI

LL
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

HI
GH

 C
OU

NT
RY

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

, P
.C

.
41

 C
LA

YT
ON

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 30

0
AS

HE
VI

LL
E,

 N
OR

TH
 C

AR
OL

IN
A 

28
80

1
T:

 82
8.2

30
.45

11
F:

 82
8.3

48
.50

40

NC
 F

IR
M 

NO
.: C

-3
34

7

CH
UR

CH
 S

TR
EE

T 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

NEIGHBOR BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

1 2
3 4

1 2 3

4

20



Agenda Item 6 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

21



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS AND ACTION PLAN WITH PRIORITIES 

Legally 
Required 

Annual Review for 
Compliance and Progress 

Proposed Deletions 
and Combinations 

Proposed 
Additions 

1 

TC Proposed Avg P&Z Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff P&Z TC 
PRIORITIZATION RESPONSIBILITY

PLAN CONSISTENCY REVIEW - LEGALLY REQUIRED 

- 1.4 1.8 1 Consult plan priorities if inconsistencies 
develop in the implementation of this Plan 

Legally required    

- 1.5 2 1 Consult the Future Land Use Map and use 
descriptions for Plan consistency review 

Legally required    

- 1.6 2.2 1 Consult Action Plan and stated goals for Plan 
consistency review 

Legally required    

- 1.7 2.3 1 Consult additional approved plans for Plan 
consistency review 

Legally required    

MAINTENANCE OF PLAN AND REGULATIONS – LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

- 1.2 1.3 1 Conduct an annual review of progress towards 
accomplishment of goals as stated in this Plan 

For accountability 
purposes 

   

- 1.3 1.5 1 Update appendix to this Plan when new plans 
or amendments related to land use are adopted 

To keep Plan up-to-date 
and usable 

 

- 1.3 1.5 1 Conduct an annual review of zoning regulations 
to ensure statutory compliance and consistency 
with stated goals 

Strongly suggested for 
legal compliance 

 

- 1.4 1.7 1 Undertake an annual review of the 
Table of Uses 

Strongly suggested for 
legal compliance 

 

- 1.4 1.8 1 Conduct an annual review of subdivision 
regulations to ensure statutory compliance and 
consistency with stated goals 

Strongly suggested for 
legal compliance 

 

- 1.4 1.8 1 Consider development of or amendment to 
regulations consistent with law and Plan 

   

22



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS AND ACTION PLAN WITH PRIORITIES 

Legally 
Required 

Annual Review for 
Compliance and Progress 

Proposed Deletions 
and Combinations 

Proposed 
Additions 

2 

TC Proposed Avg P&Z Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff P&Z TC 
- 1 Undertake a comprehensive update to the Plan 

in 2025 or at such time as substantial legislative 
or other changes are experienced within the 
Town 

Proposed Addition 
2025 is proposed in 
order to provide for 5 
year updates that better 
align with Census 

   

WATER 

1.1 1.2 1 Continue discussions regarding water 
treatment plant expansion 

Recommend Deletion 
with item added below 

  

1 1 Update Plan and regulations to slow land use 
development if water treatment plant 
expansion is postponed or terminated and 
water usage and commitments reach 70% of 
available water supply 

Proposed Addition - 
added to substitute for 
continuing discussion of 
WTP expansion 

   

1 1.1 1.2 1 Continue monitoring water production, 
allocations, usage, and availability  

 

1 1.1 1.2 1 Continue reserving water allocation for infill 
development within the town 

 

STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

1 1.3 1.5 1 Determine when sidewalks and other 
improvements are required with development 
approvals 

   

1 1.4 1.7 1 Continue the Street Improvement Program   
1 1.7 2.3 1 Review the current policy on street standards 

for private streets 
   

1 1.7 1.3 2 Consider implementing a Sidewalk 
Improvement Program and Master Plan 

  

23



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS AND ACTION PLAN WITH PRIORITIES 

Legally 
Required 

Annual Review for 
Compliance and Progress 

Proposed Deletions 
and Combinations 

Proposed 
Additions 

3 

TC Proposed Avg P&Z Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff P&Z TC 
2 2 2 2 Develop and distribute a downtown parking 

map 
 

GENERAL POLICY MATTERS 

- 1.2 1.3 1 Maintain good communication and 
coordination with State, County, and local 
authorities 

Possible Deletion   

2 1.8 2.5 1 Consider reestablishing the Town's 
extraterritorial jurisdiction 

  

2 1.9 1.7 2 Review and update economic development 
goals 

  

2.3 2.5 2 Consider ways to encourage population 
diversity 

Recommend Deletion – 
This is in the Strategic 
Plan 

  

2.6 2.2 3 Explore reestablishing a regular bus route 
between Weaverville and Asheville 

Recommend Deletion – 
This is in the Strategic 
Plan 

  

HOUSING 

1 1.8 2.5 1 Consider land use regulation that provides for 
high density single family residential 
development 

Higher priority because 
of demand 

   

2 1.9 2.2 1.5 Define and consider ways to achieve balanced 
residential development 

  

2 2.4 2.7 2 Consider ways to address housing affordability   
2.9 2.7 3 Consider ways to increase housing options to 

support our younger population 
Recommend Deletion – 
Should be done with 
balanced residential 
development discussion 

  

24



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS AND ACTION PLAN WITH PRIORITIES 

Legally 
Required 

Annual Review for 
Compliance and Progress 

Proposed Deletions 
and Combinations 

Proposed 
Additions 

4 

TC Proposed Avg P&Z Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff P&Z TC 
2.9 2.7 3 Consider ways to increase housing options to 

support our older population 
Recommend Deletion – 
Should be done with 
balanced residential 
development discussion 

  

ZONING  

1 1.2 1.3 1 Implement a staff-led Technical Review 
Committee for development reviews 

   

1.3 1.5 1 Continue to analyze ways to provide standard 
regulations in order to reserve use of 
conditional zoning districts for unique 
development 

Possible Deletion – Will 
be part of annual 
review of zoning 
regulations 

   

1 1.5 2 1 Undertake a comprehensive review of zoning 
regulations 

Lower priority than 
subdivision review 

   

1.6 2.2 1 Revise sign regulations for compliance with law Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review 
Legal compliance 

   

1 1.9 1.7 2 Consider land use regulation that provides for 
transition districts 

   

1 1.9 1.7 2 Consider land use regulation that 
better provides for mixed use development 

   

2 1.9 1.8 2 Consider Town-initiated rezonings to better 
align established uses with underlying zoning 
districts or to address long dormant properties 

   

25



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS AND ACTION PLAN WITH PRIORITIES 

Legally 
Required 

Annual Review for 
Compliance and Progress 

Proposed Deletions 
and Combinations 

Proposed 
Additions 

5 

TC Proposed Avg P&Z Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff P&Z TC 
1.9 2.2 1.5 Review and revise telecommunication 

regulations to comply with newly enacted laws 
on small cell wireless and other industry 
changes 

Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review 
Legal compliance 

   

1.9 2.7 1 Review stormwater provisions in light of 
County regulatory authority 

Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review; 
review risk with P&Z 

   

1.9 2.3 1.5 Consider update to regulations concerning 
traffic impact studies in light of NCDOT 
regulatory authority 

Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review 

   

2.1 2.7 1.5 Reconsider hillside development standards Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review; review 
ineffectiveness 

   

2 2.3 2 2.5 Initiate special area studies for the Downtown 
Area, North Main Street-”Five Points” Area, 
Monticello Road corridor, and Reems Creek 
Road corridor 

   

2.3 1.5 3 Review annually the C-1 Central Business 
District regulations to ensure preservation of 
the Downtown Area 

Possible Deletion – Will 
be part of annual 
review of zoning 
regulations 

   

2.4 2.8 2 Review grading regulations in light of county 
regulatory authority 

Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review 

   

2.7 2.3 3 Consider update to outdoor lighting regulations 
to reflect industry changes 

Recommend Deletion – 
Will be done with 
annual review 

   

26



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS AND ACTION PLAN WITH PRIORITIES 

Legally 
Required 

Annual Review for 
Compliance and Progress 

Proposed Deletions 
and Combinations 

Proposed 
Additions 

6 

TC Proposed Avg P&Z Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff P&Z TC 

SUBDIVISION 

1 1.2 1.3 1 Implement a staff-led Technical Review 
Committee for development reviews 

   

1 1.4 1.8 1 Undertake a comprehensive review of 
subdivision regulations 

Higher priority than 
zoning review 

   

1 1.4 1.8 1 Clarify legally required exemptions to 
subdivision regulations and reexamine the 
definitions of minor subdivisions and major 
subdivisions 

   

1 1.6 2.2 1 Streamline the subdivision review process    

RECREATION 

2.4 1.7 3 Consider reworking walking trails and traffic 
patterns at Lake Louise to remove pedestrian 
traffic from streets 

Recommend Deletion – 
Administration of Parks 
and Rec Master Plan 

 

2.7 2.3 3 Look for ways to improve and expand 
recreation availability, accessibility, and 
options 

Recommend Deletion – 
Administration of Parks 
and Rec Master Plan 

  

2.7 2.3 3 Develop and distribute materials to highlight 
recreational opportunities 

Recommend Deletion – 
Administration of Parks 
and Rec Master Plan 

 

27



Town of Weaverville

2019
28



TABLE OF  CONTENTS

29



TABLE OF  CONTENTS

30



TABLE OF  CONTENTS

31



INTRODUCTION
Town ordinances related to land use are generally enacted under the town’s traditional police power
authority which focuses on public health and safety. However, some land use regulation attempts to
control land use by designating certain areas of desirable locations for non-nuisance land use. Since
this typically does not flow directly from concerns over public health and safety, it requires specific
enabling authority. In addition, it requires a “comprehensive” or interdisciplinary collection of
background studies tied together in a sensible fashion in order to demonstrate to the court the
relation between the regulations and proper police power objectives.
 
For towns and cities the specific enabling authority for land use regulation is found in Article 19 of
Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes. Section 160A-383(a) specifically states that
“[z]oning regulations shall be made in accordance of a comprehensive plan.” Much of the legislative
responsibilities that town council has concerning land use regulations are required to be consistent
with the town’s “comprehensive plan.”
 
Following the implementation of zoning, the Town of Weaverville adopted its first land use plan on
May 16, 1983. This plan, consisting of 28 pages of maps and text, was developed in conjunction with
the Land-of-Sky Regional Council to “examine existing development patterns and to indicate a
desirable arrangement for future land uses.” In response to continued and evolving growth in and
around the Town, further versions of the land use plan were adopted in 1991, 2007, and 2012, each
taking into account the change in demographics, development pressures and the desires of the
citizens of the Town. 

  
With the 2012 plan suggesting a comprehensive review every five years, an update was undertaken
beginning in 2018 with the goal of  surveying the totality of the circumstances and creating a plan
reflective of the current development experience and the vision of the Town of Weaverville in years
to come.
 

Adopted by the Weaverville Town Council on this the ____ day of __________, 2019.

Allan P. Root, Mayor

Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk

 
This Comprehensive Land Use Plan was adopted by the Weaverville Town Council and, in
accordance with North Carolina law, shall serve as a policy guide for the Town in its future decisions
related to land use through its established priorities, goals and plan for implementation. This Plan
shall be automatically amended upon Town Council's adoption of amendments to the Town's land
use regulations (including specifically the subdivision and zoning regulations and zoning map),
adoption of or amendments to other plans directly or indirectly related to land use, or upon direct
action taken by Town Council to amend or update this Plan.
 

ADOPTION
AND AMENDMENTS

DRAFT
DRAFT

132



North Carolina General Statutes require that a jurisdiction consult an adopted land use plan when
considering adoption or amendment of zoning regulations.  Specifically, Town Council must prepare
and approve a plan consistency analysis for each initial zoning, rezoning or zoning text amendment. In
2017 the General Assembly amended Section 160A-383 to add more specificity to the mandated
plan consistency statements.
 
In 2017 the legislature strengthened this requirement by explicitly requiring the planning board to
advise and comment in writing on whether a proposed zoning amendment is consistent with any
comprehensive plan and requiring Town Council to adopt a plan consistency statement prior to
adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment. Such a statement must take one of the following forms:

HOW IS THE
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE
PLAN USED?

 
A statement approving the zoning amendment and describing its consistency with an
adopted comprehensive plan and explaining why the action taken is reasonable and in the
public interest.
A statement rejecting the zoning amendment and describing its inconsistency with an
adopted comprehensive plan and explaining why the action taken is reasonable and in the
public interest.
A statement approving the zoning amendment and containing at least all of the following:

 

 
A “comprehensive land use plan" is an interdisciplinary collection of background studies tied
together in a sensible fashion in order to demonstrate to the court the relation between land use
regulations and proper police power objectives.
 
Through the use of technically sound background studies, this comprehensive land use plan
examines the social, economic and physical aspects of a community’s growth and is comprehensive
in time, scope, and geography. The findings and policies contained in this document have been based
on a reasonable technical foundation and the technical studies are themselves reasonably scientific
and accurate. This plan includes written findings and goals governing community growth and
development.
 
NCGS § 160A-383(e) indicates that a “comprehensive plan” includes development ordinances (such
as zoning regulations, zoning map, and subdivision regulations) and any other officially adopted plan
that is applicable.

WHAT IS A
COMPREHENSIVE
LAND USE PLAN?

A declaration that the approval is also deemed an amendment to the comprehensive
plan. The governing body shall not require any additional request or application for
amendment to the comprehensive plan.
An explanation of the change in conditions the governing body took into account in
amending the zoning ordinance to meet the development needs of the community.
Why the action was reasonable and in the public interest.

While not itemized in NCGS 160A-383, a final option would address situations where Town
Council wishes to reject a proposed amendment that was, nevertheless, consistent with the
comprehensive plan. It is believed that this is possible as long as a statement rejecting the
proposed amendment and amending the plan is adopted by Town Council. while taking into
consideration the change in conditions, reasonableness and public interest.

233



TECHNICAL STUDIES

CURRENT AND COMPARATIVE DEMOGRAPHICS
CURRENT AND PROJECTED PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

ANALYSIS OF ANNEXATION OPTIONS
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION ANALYSIS

COMMUNITY INFORMATION AND INPUT SESSIONS

Using information obtained from the 2010 US Census, the 2016 American Community Survey, the
2017 Population Estimate Program, Buncombe County GIS data, and Weaverville departmental
data, Town staff studied the following areas: population characteristics and estimates, basic
information on the Town’s geographic characteristics, housing profiles and housing stock, data
concerning education and income, industry and occupational characteristics, and governmental
infrastructure. Staff also compared its findings with neighboring jurisdictions including Buncombe
County and the cities and towns near the Town of Weaverville. Using demographic data from years
past and comparing that data to the current demographics of the Town, certain relevant trends
emerged.
 
The public infrastructure that supports and influences land use development was also studied
including public water, public sewer, and streets and roads within the Town.
 
As growth pressures around the edges of the Town's boundaries are occurring, an analysis of the
Town's ability to regulate land use just outside of its municipal limits, in what is called an
extraterritorial jurisdiction, was undertaken and is discussed.  Likewise, as the only method of
expanding the Town's jurisdiction is through annexation, the various types of annexation and their
limitations were studied and are summarized in this plan.
 
Lastly, a thorough study would not be complete without input from the Town's citizens. At the
direction of Town Council, staff provided land use information and public input sessions. A report on
these sessions is included.
 
It should be noted that the information contained in this Comprehensive Land Use Plan is current as
of November 2018.
 

334



The important findings and trends that were identified in the
research, study and analysis of current and past
demographics is presented below. Please see the appendix
for the full findings concerning the demographics study
undertaken.
 

CURRENT AND COMPARATIVE
DEMOGRAPHICS

CURRENT POPULATION, SOCIAL, AND ECONOMIC
CHARACTERISTICS AND TRENDS
The demographic data reviewed supports the general consensus that the Town of Weaverville is
experiencing a rapid rate of growth.  It would not be surprising if the Town's official population based
on the 2020 Census exceeds 5,000. Using the current estimates of 4,724 residents of the Town, the
Town has grown by approximately 52% since 2010.
 
The largest segment of the Town's population is of retirement age. The median age of our population
increased from 45 years of age in 2000 to 52.6 years of age currently, an increase of approximately 8
years.
 
The Town of Weaverville enjoys the lowest level of poverty (5.3%) and the highest median
household income ($53,072) as compared to other jurisdictions in the area.

CONSIDER WAYS TO ENCOURAGE POPULATION
DIVERSITY

435



The Town has a thriving historic Main Street which contains an interesting variety of retail
establishments, art galleries, restaurants, and offices. Other commercial areas are found on
Weaver Boulevard, Merrimon Avenue and the "Five Points" area of North Main Street. Some of the
commercial developments continue to have property available for sale or lease and have not been
able to secure such development. The Town has struggled to maintain the industrial enterprises
operating within the Town.
 
The retraction of the industrial and larger scale commercial establishments has had the effect of
reducing the Town's personal property value.

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT  AND TRENDS

REVIEW AND UPDATE ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT GOALS

536



The majority of new economic development within the Town over the last decade has been
residential in nature. This has resulted in an estimated current housing stock of approximately
2,233 houses, an increase of 68% since 2010. It is expected that economic development within the
Town will continue to skew towards residential development and the commercial development
needed to support those residences.

The current median housing value is $335,000, which may be pricing certain segments of the
population out of home ownership. That said, the Town’s percent of owner-occupied housing has
remained consistent over the years and is currently at 81%. This reflects a significant investment in
the Town by these residents and provides stability to the Town. It may also point to a continued
need for a better balance of housing options.

The residential development occurring within the Town is also predominately single family
residences with a good portion of those occurring on very small lots resulting in higher density than
the R-1 and R-2 zoning districts allow. The higher density single family dwelling development is
occurring outside of traditional zoning districts through special use permits or conditional zoning
districts since none of the Town’s current zoning districts support  higher density single family
residential development.

The Town has recently been presented with a number of multi-family residential projects. Some of
these have been approved and are at varying stages of completion with some completed and
occupied and others just beginning the permitting process. Staff is aware of several multi-family
residential projects that are being discussed that involve development on properties just outside of
the Town’s borders in the vicinities of Monticello Road and Reems Creek Road.

The 2012 Comprehensive Land Use Plan and other plans more recently adopted by Town Council,
such as the Strategic Plan, have called for more diversity of housing options in order to achieve
more balanced residential development. Some progress in this stated goal has been achieved as
indicated by the recent increase of multi-family residential units, a 5% increase in just a year or two,
but more work is needed in this area.

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRENDS

DEFINE AND CONSIDER WAYS TO ACHIEVE
BALANCED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CONSIDER WAYS TO ADDRESS HOUSING
AFFORDABILITY

637



The Town's current land area is 2,054.37 acres which is approximately 3.21 square miles located
largely within the Reems Creek valley, sharing a common border with the Town of Woodfin. Primary
municipal limits account for 2,030.99 acres, while 23.38 acres are noncontiguous. Some properties
are located within the 100 year floodplain associated with Reems Creek. Elevation ranges from
2,000 feet at Reems Creek to 2,860 feet at the top of Hamburg Mountain.

Lake Louise, located within the Town's Lake Louise Park, is a regionally known landmark. Access to
the Blue Ridge Parkway and the French Broad River are a short distance from the Town. There are
several cultural resources in or near the Town including the Dry Ridge Historical Museum,
Buncombe County Library, and Vance Birthplace Historical Place.
 
I-26, which runs concurrently with US 19/23 in a north/south direction, provides a majority of the
Town's western boundary and easy access to Asheville and areas of eastern Tennessee. US 25/70
runs in an east/west direction near the northern end of the Town providing access to Marshall and
other areas in Madison County. Other major thoroughfares within the Town include Merrimon
Avenue, Main Street, Weaver Boulevard, Monticello Road and Reems Creek Road. The Asheville
Regional Airport is a mere 25 miles from the Town, providing convenient access to travel by air.

GEOGRAPHIC
CHARACTERISTICS

738



CURRENT AND PROJECTED
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

The Town has been a public water provider since 1912. It currently provides public water through
its operation of a water treatment plant located along the Ivy River that began operation in 1996.
The water treatment plant has a current operating capacity of 1.5 million gallons of water per day.
The plant was designed and permitted to be expanded up to a total of 4 million gallons per
day, which will allow for more than double the current plant capacity.
 
Through approximately 66 miles of water lines and just under 2800 water meters, the Town, on
average produces approximately 565,000 gallons of water per day for domestic water and fire
prevention purposes. The Town provides public water to properties inside the Town’s municipal
limits and to properties adjacent to the Town’s limits in the Reems Creek Valley and in areas along
US Highway 19/23 North towards Madison County. The Town is currently working on a waterline
expansion project in the vicinity of Clarks Chapel Road and Ollie Weaver Road that will provide for
redundancy and improved water quality within the Town's water system.  With a water treatment
plant expansion project in the planning stages, this Plan is based on the assumption that the plant
expansion will be completed in the near future. This expansion will serve to increase water
availability, directly impacting land use development options within the Town and along its
boundaries.
 
Land use decisions directly impact water usage and capacity. Likewise, water availability directly
affects land use. Town staff actively monitors the amount of water that is produced, allocated, and
used, so that shortages do not occur and this important resource is properly managed. Allocations
are specifically reserved for development of unimproved land within the Town so that when
development is considered outside of the Town's municipal limits, the Town's current citizens and
water customers are protected. This data will also be used in discussions related to an expansion of
the water treatment plant and, if approved, the timing of such expansion.  As decisions are made
that affect the capacity of the water system, updates to this Plan and land use regulations should be
considered.
 
Outside water customers pay double the water rates as customers residing within the Town. Newly
allowed water system development fees were adopted by the Town effective 1 July 2018 and are
assessed for all new development and represent a new water customer's "buy-in" to the water
system. The amount is based on a recent study by an engineering firm and Town Council has elected
to maximize these fees to closely align with that full "buy-in" cost. Developers are required to
construct, at their own expense, the waterlines that are required to gain access to the Town's water
system, thus saving the Town from the cost of constructing those needed lines.

PUBLIC WATER

CONTINUE MONITORING WATER PRODUCTION,
ALLOCATIONS, USAGE, AND AVAILABILITY

UPDATE PLAN AND REGULATIONS TO SLOW
LAND USE DEVELOPMENT IF WATER TREATMENT
PLANT EXPANSION IS POSTPONED OR
TERMINATED AND WATER USAGE AND
COMMITMENTS REACH 70% OF AVAILABLE
WATER SUPPLY 

 839



REVIEW THE CURRENT POLICY ON STREET
STANDARDS FOR PRIVATE STREETS

North Carolina law and Town regulations require that all developed land have legal road access.
 
I-26 traverses the Town of Weaverville and a project for its expansion has been long discussed and
debated. It is expected that some resolution of this project is foreseeable within the next 5 years
and prior to the next update of this plan.
 
There are 3 types of roads in North Carolina and in the Town: State roads, Town streets, and private
roads. The Town’s main thoroughfares (Merrimon, Main Street, Weaver Boulevard, Reems Creek
Road, Monticello Road) are all public roads that are maintained by the North Carolina Department
of Transportation. The Town maintains approximately 19 miles of streets within its borders. Many
subdivisions located within the Town maintain private roads.
 
Much of the Town's growth and anticipated growth are concentrated around the Monticello Road
corridor and the Reems Creek Road corridor, as well as development on vacant land within Town
limits.
 
The Town conducts resurfacing and related repairs to its streets based upon a Street Improvement
Program which evaluates the conditions of streets based on stated criteria in order to objectively
determine which streets are improved and when. The average life of a paved street is 15 – 20 years
and is affected by weather and traffic. To adequately maintain the Town’s street system the Town
must repave approximately 1 mile per year. The Town’s current budget includes $300,000 for street
improvements in 2019 and takes advantage of Powell Bill funds set aside by the State for local
street projects.
 
Town ordinances require that all streets constructed within the Town be designed and built  to
Town street standards. This policy has not been reviewed in recent years and has created some
confusion and concern within some residential communities. The enforcement of these standards
requires a great deal of staff time and coordination between public works staff, developers, and
contractors, in order to monitor the construction of each street at each of several stages.
 
It is suggested that the application of Town street standards on all streets in the Town be reviewed
in order to determine the policy goals and expectations, and plan the implementation of the policy.

STREETS AND ROADS

MAINTAIN GOOD COMMUNICATION AND
COORDINATION WITH STATE, COUNTY,
AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES

In all of Buncombe County public sewer is provided by the Metropolitan Sewerage District (MSD) of
Buncombe County. The Town of Weaverville has a representative on the MSD Board in order to
ensure good communication between MSD and the Town. Certain development can be supported by
private septic systems but large-scale higher density residential development and commercial and
industrial development typically requires access to public sewer.
 
Continued communication between the Town and MSD is recommended in order to make sure that
the Town is kept apprised of MSD's master plan and expansion of its system so that the Town can
better determine areas that are likely to experience growth and the intensity and type of such
growth.

PUBLIC  SEWER

CONTINUE THE  STREET IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM

940



ANALYSIS
OF ANNEXATION

OPTIONS

Voluntary annexations result when the owners of property request to become part of the Town and
the Town agrees.  Changes to the Town's boundaries through voluntary annexation are entirely
within Town Council's discretion. The Town has no obligation to proceed with a proposed
annexation. In fact, Town Council doesn’t have to respond to an annexation petition at all.
 
There are two types of voluntary annexation: contiguous annexation and non-contiguous or
satellite annexation. Contiguous annexation brings properties that are adjacent to the Town's
primary corporate limits into the Town's jurisdiction. For the annexation of properties that do not
adjoin the Town's corporate limits, referred to as satellite or non-contiguous annexation, there are
special requirements that must be met including limitations on the size of the property and distance
of the area to be annexed from the nearest municipal jurisdiction. The total area of the Town’s
satellites may not exceed 10% of the area within its primary corporate limits. At the time of
adoption of this plan, approximately 23.38 acres of the Town's total jurisdiction is non-contiguous.
The non-contiguous or satellite areas comprise 1.1% of the Town's primary corporate limits, well
below the limit established by North Carolina law.
 
If a property is annexed into the Town, the Town must provide services to the added property to
the same extent and under the same policies as within the existing municipal limits.
 
Voluntary annexations are, by their nature, consensual. That said, cities frequently condition the
provision of water or sewer service upon annexation, so a property owner wishing for public
utilities may have no choice but to petition for annexation. In recognition that the Town's public
water system is a desirable resource for development of properties both inside and outside the
Town's municipal limits, recent practices have typically required annexation into the Town as
a condition of water allocation.
 
Annexation also provides a mechanism to regulate land use. Each property that is annexed into the
Town's municipal limits is provided a zoning designation which outlines the land use regulations that
will be applicable to the new Town property.  Due to the loss of the Town's extraterritorial
jurisdiction, the only way to apply the Town's land use regulations on properties outside of the
Town's municipal limits (even those properties that share a border with the Town), is to
encourage annexation of those properties. 
 

VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

Cities and towns within North Carolina are legislatively created areas under local governmental
control. The Town of Weaverville, originally chartered in 1875, extended in a half mile radius from
the old Vandiver Store on Main Street and consisted of several businesses and about 30 homes. The
Town's current jurisdiction includes approximately 2054.37 acres.
 
The North Carolina General Statutes provide two ways in which a Town can increase its municipal
limits: voluntary and involuntary annexation. The General Assembly also retains the authority to
unilaterally annex property to a municipal jurisdiction and is the only option for removing property
from the Town's jurisdiction.  Each of these procedures are reviewed below.

1041



The General Assembly retains the power to unilaterally annex or de-annex property into a
municipality. Statutory requirements do not apply to legislative actions on annexations and
deannexations. Such action would take the form of special legislation and must be introduced as a bill
by one of the legislators representing the Town. Deannexations can only be accomplished by
legislative act.

ANNEXATION BY LEGISLATIVE ACT

One variable which has changed since previous versions of the Town’s comprehensive land use plan
is the passage of legislative changes [S.L. 2012-11 (HB925)]. Involuntary annexation is more difficult
to accomplish since in 2012 the legislature began requiring an affirmative vote of the majority of the
voters within the proposed annexation area. The voter requirement is seen by most jurisdictions
across the State as an insurmountable hurdle; however, other difficulties exist concerning
compliance with requirements for water and sewer service, population densities, subdivision and
use standards, and the establishment of plans for the provision of municipal services.

For these reasons, involuntary annexation is anticipated to remain an ineffective tool for land use
planning purposes.

INVOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

Should Council wish to expand the municipal limits of the Town, it is likely to occur on unimproved
parcels of land in conjunction with new water allocations rather than improved properties with
single family housing stock as found in areas such as Dogwood Road, Hamburg Mountain Road,
Terrace Drive and various roads around the area commonly known as Woodland Hills. It is also
likely that this expansion will be accomplished through voluntary annexation.

Staff has conducted an analysis of both the present water rates and the
rates as they are projected to increase as recommended by rate studies
conducted on behalf of the Town. The purpose of said analysis was to
provide information related to a possible outreach program for
voluntary annexation, specifically in areas currently served by the
Town’s water system and adjacent to or near the present municipal
borders.

The study indicated that such an outreach program is unlikely to come
to fruition as the data made clear that such an arrangement is unlikely
to be financially advantageous to water customers outside municipal
limits. Even though the water customers located outside municipal
limits pay double water rates, the municipal taxes that they would pay
if annexed would likely be more than the extra water charges.

Data surveyed by staff established that it would take an incredibly
unique scenario for a property owner to save money by annexing into
municipal limits. Variables measured included taxation owed based
upon property valuation and water consumption based upon double
rates.

EFFECT OF WATER RATES
ON POSSIBLE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

1142



As much of the growth pressures are occurring on the edge of the Town's municipal jurisdiction it is
important to consider land use regulation in areas just outside of the Town's borders.

As reflected in the Town's 2012 plan, the Town of Weaverville had the power to exercise its land use
regulatory authority through the means of an extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) up to one mile from
municipal borders based upon our population of fewer than 10,000. This authority, in place since
1959, was granted by North Carolina General Statute Section 160A-360 and nearly 200
jurisdictions in the State employ such ETJ areas.

However, through action of the General Assembly in 2014, the Town lost its power to exercise an
ETJ. Session Law 2014-26, specifically enumerated the Town of Weaverville and the City of
Asheville as having “no authority to exercise any power under this section [NCGS §160A-
360] outside its corporate limits.” Meaning, the power granted to each municipal jurisdiction by
general North Carolina law does not apply to the Town.  With similarly enacted special legislation,
the Town of Boone found itself without an ETJ as well.  To put this in perspective, of the 552
jurisdictions in the State of North Carolina eligible to exercise an ETJ, only the City of Asheville and
the Towns of Boone and Weaverville have been exempted from this authority.

The legislation that deprived the Town of Boone of ETJ authority (just like the Town of
Weaverville) was appealed up to the North Carolina Supreme Court and was upheld as
constitutional.  In Town of Boone v. State of North Carolina (93A15-2) filed on 21 December 2016,
Supreme Court Justice Paul Newby wrote for the majority:

EXTRATERRITORIAL
JURISDICTION ANALYSIS

CONSIDER REESTABLISHING THE
TOWN'S EXTRATERRITORIAL
JURISDICTION

Because the state constitution authorizes the General Assembly to reduce the town’s
jurisdictional reach, the removal of extraterritorial jurisdiction falls squarely within the
legislature’s general power as described in the first clause of Article VII, Section 1.

With the Supreme Court finding the act of the General Assembly constitutional, the only avenue
to reinstate these powers is to seek special legislation removing language related to the prohibition
of the Town of Weaverville from exercising an ETJ from NCGS §160A-360.

Since Buncombe County now exercises land use regulation authority in the County, the Town would
also have to gain approval by Buncombe County in order to reestablish its ETJ. This may be an area
where good communication and coordination might result in gaining the Town a supporter should it
choose to address this issue with its legislative representatives.

It should also be noted that, if the legislature should grant the authority, the Town does not have to
exercise an ETJ along the entirety of its borders but may focus its attention on the few areas in which
growth pressures are being seen or are anticipated, like the Monticello Road corridor and the Reems
Creek Road corridor.

1243



COMMUNITY INFORMATION
AND INPUT SESSIONS

The Town held land use information and public input
sessions on 21 March 2019 and 26 March 2019 at Town
Hall and at the Reems Creek Golf Community Clubhouse  on
25 April 2019. These meetings provided a good opportunity
to not only inform the Town's citizens about land use and
other related matters but to also receive valuable input
from our community members. These sessions were widely
advertised and well attended not only by the community,
but also Town Council, the Planning and Zoning Board and
the Board of Adjustment, and generated good questions
and active discussions.

The following summarizes the issues that the community
focused on in the land use development discussions.

PRESERVATION OF DOWNTOWN AREA
The historic buildings, art galleries, and unique shops and restaurants have made Weaverville a
destination for good food and art. There was an overwhelming community consensus that the
vibrant and charming downtown area of the Town of Weaverville be maintained and protected.

REVIEW ANNUALLY THE C-1 CENTRAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT REGULATIONS TO ENSURE
PRESERVATION OF THE DOWNTOWN AREA

1344



DEVELOP AND DISTRIBUTE A DOWNTOWN
PARKING MAP

The community expressed concern about the adequacy of parking in downtown Weaverville.
Approximately 230 public parking spaces are available in the downtown area. Public parking lots on
Main Street at the Historic Clock (47 spaces) and behind Town Hall (45 spaces) provide 92 public
parking lot spaces, and there are 81 parking spaces along Main Street, Pine Street, Florida Avenue
and Alabama Avenue. Through coordination with the Town, the United Methodist Church, First
Baptist Church and First Presbyterian Church are collectively providing 57 parking spaces within
church parking lots for use by the working public. It is the hope that these spaces, which have been
marked in yellow, will be used by employees of downtown businesses so that the parking on Main
Street can be used for customers and visitors. This information was not commonly known by the
community, so more public awareness needs to be made in order to maximize the parking
opportunities offered by the churches and alleviate a perception of inadequate parking.

ADEQUACY OF
DOWNTOWN  PARKING

ADEQUACY OF SIDEWALKS AND
PEDESTRIAN SAFETY

CONSIDER IMPLEMENTING A SIDEWALK
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AND MASTER PLAN

There were several comments and concerns centered around the adequacy of sidewalks. The Town
currently maintains 5.9 miles of sidewalks but has not undertaken a major sidewalk project in several
years due to completion of prior Master Plan goals and budgetary constraints. There was general
consensus that a more active sidewalk program could lead to better and safer walkability and
improved connection between neighborhoods, the downtown area, and recreational opportunities.
Current land use regulations only require developers to install sidewalks for commercial
subdivisions. Policy changes could be considered in order to require developers to install sidewalks
along public streets for residential subdivisions.

Pedestrian safety along Main Street and at the Lake Louise Park was mentioned as a concern. As
Main Street is a state-maintained road the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) is
responsible for safety along this roadway.  NCDOT has recently installed eye-catching crosswalk
signs in order to better alert drivers to the presence of pedestrians. The reworking of trails and traffic
patterns at the Lake Louise Park could be considered to encourage pedestrian traffic to move off of
the roadways.

In the near future the Town will be undertaking a review of the ADA accessibility of its streets,
sidewalks,  and facilities, with the safety of persons with disabilities in mind.

DETERMINE WHEN SIDEWALKS AND OTHER
IMPROVEMENTS ARE REQUIRED WITH
DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

1445



EXPANSION OF RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
The community expressed an appreciation for the recreational opportunities that the Town provides
within its limits through active recreational options, including ADA accessible activities, at the Lake
Louise Park and passive recreation at the Main Street Nature Park. The much anticipated Reems
Creek Greenway is hoped to extend generally from the Lake Louise Park along Reems Creek to
Karpen Field which is located a short distance outside of the Town. Some of these recreational
opportunities were unknown to some citizens, so better public awareness should be addressed.

The following represents some additional thoughts or ideas
as expressed by some of the citizens attending the sessions:

addition of a dog park or off-leash area
development of multi-modal pathways to
better accommodate bicycles
maintenance of the Main Street Nature Park for passive
recreational activities only
development of the Reems Creek Greenway

 The Town's Parks and Recreation Master Plan was developed with
community input in 2018 and outlines several objectives to
improve and expand recreational availability and accessibility.  The
Parks and Recreation Master Plan is an adopted plan that is an
additional component of this Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

1546



Historically a trolley line ran between Asheville and Weaverville up what is now known as Merrimon
Avenue to its intersection with Main Street. Sometime after the trolley line ceased operations in the
1940's a bus route was operated providing connection between the rural Town of Weaverville and
the more urban city of Asheville.

In November of 2009 the bus line between Weaverville and Asheville was discontinued due to low
ridership. Town Council has a stated goal of exploring the possibility of Asheville's transit system,
known as Asheville Redefines Transit (ART), reestablishing a regular bus route between Weaverville
and Asheville given the new residential development within the Town.

Buncombe County and Land of Sky Regional Council operates Mountain Mobility which has a regular
route connecting Weaverville with an ART bus stop located at the intersection of Merrimon Avenue
and Elkwood Avenue. While this provides a public transportation option, it is not designed for daily
commutes.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

INCREASE IN TRAFFIC
An increase in traffic volume is a natural consequence of an increase in growth within the Town and
concerns related to traffic were voiced by citizens. This takes the form of both traffic congestion on
major roads and traffic safety within the community's neighborhoods as people attempt to find ways
to avoid the more congested streets.

The Town's Police Department and Public Works Department work together to address safety issues
related to traffic, including conducting traffic counts and reviewing and revising speed limits, content
and visibility of signage, and implementing other traffic calming measures as needed.

As the major thoroughfares through the Town are state-maintained roadways, the Town has very
little control over such roads. The Town has, however, worked with the North Carolina Department of
Transportation (NCDOT) and been successful in achieving several changes that help to reduce the
impact of the increased traffic flow and safety related to driving within the Town's limits. Those
include a reduction in the speed limit on US 25/70 in the vicinity of its intersection with Monticello
Road and the removal of a long standing "NO TURN ON RED" sign at the intersection of North Main
Street and Weaver Boulevard that had previously contributed to traffic congestion.

Continued communication and coordination with NCDOT is advisable so that a good working
relationship with the authority over the major thoroughfares in the Town can be maintained with the
goal of maximizing the safety and efficiency of the movement of traffic through the Town. The Town's
appointed representative on the French Broad River Metropolitan Planning Organization Board
(MPO) can also provide information to the Town pertaining to the regional transportation projects
likely to affect the Town and to communicate the Town's transportation needs.

MAINTAIN GOOD COMMUNICATION AND
COORDINATION WITH STATE, COUNTY, AND
LOCAL AUTHORITIES

With the adoption of its Strategic Plan, Town
Council has indicated that it will be exploring
the reestablishement of a regular bus route
between Weaverville and Asheville.

1647



HOUSING AFFORDABILITY
The current median housing cost of $335,000 reflects the revaluation of property values undertaken
by the Buncombe County Tax Assessor in 2017 and represents a staggering 39% increase over two
years. The community has echoed Town Council's observation that home ownership is becoming
more expensive in the Town and expressed a concern for those living with limited or fixed income to
remain or become part of the Weaverville community. This issue is seen as directly affecting both the
younger and the older populations within the Town.

CONSIDER WAYS TO ADDRESS
HOUSING AFFORDABILITY

PUBLIC WATER AVAILABILITY
With the amount of growth that the Town has experienced in recent years, it is natural for the citizens
of Weaverville to be concerned about the continued availability of public water. The availability of
public water directly affects land use development.  As mentioned in a separate section of this
plan, Town staff monitors the amount of water that is produced, allocated, and used, so that shortages
do not occur, and reserves allocation for development of unimproved land within the Town so that
when development is considered outside of the Town's municipal limits, the Town's current citizens
and water customers are protected.

CONTINUE RESERVING WATER ALLOCATION
FOR INFILL DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE
TOWN

1748



REVIEW OF OVERLAPPING
LAND USE AUTHORITY

Municipalities have exclusive regulatory authority within their  limits, however, municipal and county
jurisdictions may overlap when mutually agreed upon. In fact, there are several areas in which
Buncombe County provides land use development regulation within the Town.

As the Town does not conduct any inspections related to the North Carolina Building Code,
depending on the scope and type of development, new construction within the Town of Weaverville
is required to obtain permits and inspections from Buncombe County. Buncombe County provides
all building, electrical, mechanical and plumbing inspections within the Town. Building permits
cannot be issued by Buncombe County without zoning compliance certification and release from the
Town's Planning and Zoning staff.

Zoning permits are issued by the Town and are required for all new development, internal
renovations, or any project which expands the present footprint of a structure, and for certain uses
of land.

Other areas of regulation related to land use that are administered by Buncombe County rather than
the Town include: stormwater management, sedimentation and erosion control, floodplain
management, environmental health inspections, e-911 addressing, and air quality.

The Town's Fire Marshal is charged with administering the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code
within the Town's jurisdiction and does so through routine and incident-related inspections. The Fire
Marshal is also called upon to provide information related to proposed land use development and its
consistency and compliance with the Fire Prevention Code.

The Town's Public Works Department is responsible for approving and inspecting all water
system related infrastructure and ensuring that good quality water is produced and distributed to its
customers. Much of this work is to ensure compliance with the requirements of the North Carolina
Department of Environmental Quality. Public Works also provides guidance, pre-construction
meetings, and inspections related to the water infrastructure constructed by developers related to
the Town's water system. The Town requires close inspection of private and public infrastructure in
order to determine compliance with Town standards when acceptance into the Town's system will be
requested.

Continued coordination with and cooperation between the Town, Buncombe County, and the
various North Carolina departments is crucial in ensuring that land use development occurs
responsibly and in a timely manner.

MAINTAIN GOOD COMMUNICATION
AND COORDINATION WITH STATE,

COUNTY, AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES

1849



REVIEW OF CURRENT
LAND USE REGULATION

CONDUCT AN ANNUAL REVIEW OF SUBDIVISION
REGULATIONS TO ENSURE STATUTORY
COMPLIANCE AND CONSISTENCY WITH STATED
GOALS

STREAMLINE THE SUBDIVISION REVIEW PROCESS

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

REVIEW FOR STATUTORY COMPLIANCE,
EFFECTIVENESS AND EFFICIENCY

Section 160A-371 of the North Carolina General Statutes provides that a Town may by ordinance
regulate the subdivision of land within its territorial jurisdiction in order to protect the public health,
to establish clear parcels and property rights, to ensure adequate infrastructure, and to facilitate
orderly growth. With the initial adoption of its subdivision ordinance and subsequent amendments
and codification as Chapter 25 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the Town provides requirements
and approval procedures for the subdivision of land for a variety of uses allowable by the underlying
zoning district.

The subdivision regulations of the Town have, from time to time, been amended but a comprehensive
review of the regulations and procedures has not been undertaken since its adoption. Such a review
is strongly recommended.

The study of the subdivision ordinance associated with the update to the comprehensive land use
plan resulted in the following findings:

UNDERTAKE A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW OF
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

While the subdivision regulations appear to be generally compliant with North Carolina law, some
areas have been identified for specific consideration in order to either clarify the provisions or
remedy inefficiencies in the approval process.

IMPLEMENT A STAFF-LED TECHNICAL REVIEW
COMMITTEE FOR DEVELOPMENT REVIEWS

CLARIFY LEGALLY REQUIRED EXEMPTIONS TO
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AND REEXAMINE THE
DEFINITIONS OF MINOR SUBDIVISIONS AND
MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS

DETERMINE WHEN SIDEWALKS AND OTHER
IMPROVEMENTS ARE REQUIRED  WITH
DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

1950



ZONING REGULATIONS
On the night of January 16, 1978 Town Council began conversations regarding a zoning ordinance
for the Town of Weaverville. Following months of discussions and negotiations, and working in
conjunction with the then known North Carolina Department of Natural and Economic resources,
the Town of Weaverville’s original zoning ordinance was adopted via a unanimous vote of Council on
June 19, 1978. This ordinance consisted of 23 pages and envisioned 3 zoning districts.

Today’s version, codified as Chapter 36 of the Town's Code of Ordinances, contains 152 pages and 7
standard zoning districts and utilizes a Table of Dimensional Requirements and Table of Uses which
indicate what uses are permitted, permitted with standards, or are allowed through the adoption of a
conditional zoning district. Regulatory language  for signs, landscaping, grading, special use permits,
vested rights, dimensional requirements and telecommunication facilities have also been adopted.

As part of the technical studies undertaken with the update to the comprehensive land use plan,
Town staff reviewed the current zoning ordinance for consistency with stated goals, effectiveness
and efficiency, and statutory compliance.  This section of the report reviews those findings.

REVIEW OF TABLE OF USES
In 2017 the Town undertook a large zoning project to include within its zoning regulations a table of
uses. Adopted on 21 August 2017, the Table of Uses has proven to be a tremendous tool for staff and
the development community when determining which uses are permitted within certain zoning
districts and, if so, by what method. Amendments have been considered and adopted as necessary to
achieve the regulation desired by Town Council. Staff believes that an annual review of the Table of
Uses with the Planning and Zoning Board and Town Council is advisable to ensure that the Table
keeps pace with evolving development and to discuss the efficiency of the permitting process.

UNDERTAKE AN ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE
TABLE OF USES

2051



REVIEW FOR STATUTORY COMPLIANCE,
EFFECTIVENESS AND EFFICIENCY

CONTINUE TO ANALYZE WAYS TO
PROVIDE STANDARD REGULATIONS IN
ORDER TO RESERVE USE OF CONDITIONAL
ZONING DISTRICTS FOR UNIQUE
DEVELOPMENT

CONDUCT AN ANNUAL REVIEW OF ZONING
REGULATIONS  TO ENSURE STATUTORY
COMPLIANCE AND CONSISTENCY WITH STATED
GOALS

The zoning regulations of the Town are routinely amended to provide for clear and effective
regulation of land use within the Town and for compliance with the current North Carolina laws.
There are several sections of the zoning regulation that are in need of review due to changes in the
law. Also of note is pending legislation that, if adopted, would provide the first comprehensive
amendment to the land use regulatory authority in North Carolina since its adoption, the purpose of
which is to modernize such regulation. A thorough review and revision of the Town's zoning
regulations should follow. The following represent matters for further review and potential action:

UNDERTAKE A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW
OF ZONING REGULATIONS

IMPLEMENT A STAFF-LED TECHNICAL REVIEW
COMMITTEE FOR DEVELOPMENT REVIEWS

2152



SUGGESTED STUDIES AND REGULATIONS FOR
CONSISTENCY WITH NEWLY STATED POLICY GOALS

DEFINE AND CONSIDER WAYS TO ACHIEVE
BALANCED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CONSIDER LAND USE REGULATION THAT
PROVIDES FOR TRANSITION DISTRICTS

Through adoption of its Strategic Plan and by action or consensus of Town Council,  several potential
new initiatives have been identified that warrant additional study and possible implementation:

CONSIDER LAND USE REGULATION THAT
BETTER  PROVIDES FOR MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

REVIEW OF ZONING MAP

INITIATE SPECIAL AREA STUDIES FOR
DOWNTOWN AREA, NORTH MAIN STREET-
"FIVE POINTS" AREA, MONTICELLO ROAD
CORRIDOR, AND REEMS CREEK ROAD CORRIDOR

As a part of the update to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan the Town's zoning map was reviewed in
order to determine general consistency of uses present and uses allowed on an individual parcel
basis as well as consistency with the previously adopted future land use map. Nonconformities were
also analyzed and several districts were identified for potential rezonings.

CONSIDER TOWN-INITIATED REZONINGS TO
BETTER ALIGN ESTABLISHED USES WITH
UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICTS OR TO
ADDRESS LONG DORMANT PROPERTIES

2253



In 2016 Town Council eliminated unified housing developments from the zoning ordinance. Unified
housing developments, approved as special use permits, were projects reviewed and ruled upon by
the Town's Board of Adjustment through the quasi-judicial process. Current standard residential
zoning districts were not designed to accommodate this type of development which often calls for
smaller homes on lots of reduced size. Developments previously approved through the former unified
housing development regulations include Lakeside Meadows, Creekside Village, Hamburg Crossing,
Kyfields, Partridge Berry Lane, Reems Creek Town Homes and Water Point Way, which represent a
large portion of single family homes which have been permitted within the last three years,
establishing both a need within our community and the development sector.

It should be noted that the option still exists for a development of this nature to be reviewed through
the conditional zoning district process, which is labor and time intensive for staff, the Planning and
Zoning Board, and Town Council as each instance calls for the creation of a new zoning district to
accommodate the development and take into account the current conditions on surrounding
properties. Developers have indicated that this option is not favored due to the uncertainties that are
inherent in conditional zoning districts.

A more efficient process would be to create a new or revise an existing zoning district to
accommodate high density single family residential development. This would allow Town Council to
set density requirements within a zoning district which would address the needs of the community for
a wide array of housing opportunities noted in the current Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the
2018-2021 Strategic Plan.

HIGH DENSITY SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CONSIDER LAND USE REGULATION THAT
PROVIDES FOR HIGH DENSITY SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

2354



ESTABLISHMENT
OF GOALS AND  PRIORITIES

PROVIDE QUALITY TOWN SERVICES TO MEET THE NEEDS OF THE
COMMUNITY
IMPROVE REGIONAL COLLABORATION AND COMMUNICATION
SUPPORT A BALANCED POPULATION
PRESERVE AND PROTECT OUR UNIQUE AND VIBRANT DOWNTOWN
ENCOURAGE A BALANCE OF RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL,
AND INDUSTRIAL USES
PROTECT OUR SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR BALANCED RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT
PRIORITIZE EFFICIENCY IN DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESSES
REMAIN A REGIONAL LEADER IN PRODUCTION OF WATER

CONSULT PLAN PRIORITIES IF
INCONSISTENCIES DEVELOP IN THE

IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS PLAN

CONSIDER DEVELOPMENT OF OR
AMENDMENT TO REGULATIONS

CONSISTENT WITH LAW AND PLAN

Based on the technical studies, reviews, and analysis conducted as a part of this Comprehensive Land
Use Plan project, the Town, with the adoption of this Plan,  hereby establishes the goals stated within
this document and the following priorities with the expectation that they should guide the land use
development and regulations within the Town of Weaverville and its land use jurisdiction.

CONDUCT AN ANNUAL REVIEW OF
PROGRESS TOWARDS ACCOMPLISHMENT

OF GOALS AS STATED IN THIS PLAN 

UNDERTAKE A COMPREHENSIVE UPDATE TO
THE PLAN IN 2025 OR AT SUCH TIME AS

SUBSTANTIAL LEGISLATIVE OR OTHER
CHANGES ARE EXPERIENCED IN THE TOWN

CONSULT ACTION PLAN AND STATED
GOALS FOR  PLAN CONSISTENCY REVIEW

2455



ESTABLISHMENT OF
FUTURE LAND USE MAP

This future land use map is adopted as part of this Comprehensive Land Use Plan to provide
primary guidance for the categories of uses expected within the geographic areas of the Town and
along the Town's borders.
 
Gaps have been intentionally provided between defined areas on the future land use map as there is
a need for flexibility to allow for the uncertainty of the future. Defined areas do not necessarily follow
property boundaries. The boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than fixed lines and
the final decisions on land use types in these transitional areas should be left to the discretion
and good judgment of the appointed and elected officials that are charged with establishing
development policy and regulations in the Town.
 
Descriptions of the land use categories shown on this future land use map are found in the Appendix
and include the following: Downtown, Residential, Commercial, Industrial, Mixed Use.
 

CONSULT THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AND
USE DESCRIPTIONS FOR PLAN CONSISTENCY
REVIEW

2556



ESTABLISHMENT OF
ADDITIONAL COMPONENTS

OF THE PLAN

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS (TOWN CODE CHAPTER 25)
ZONING REGULATIONS (TOWN CODE CHAPTER 36)
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP
TOWN STRATEGIC PLAN
REEMS CREEK GREENWAY FEASIBILITY STUDY / APPROVED PLAN
PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN

CONSULT ADDITIONAL APPROVED PLANS FOR
PLAN CONSISTENCY REVIEW

UPDATE APPENDIX TO THIS PLAN WHEN NEW
PLANS OR AMENDMENTS RELATED TO LAND USE
ARE ADOPTED

This Comprehensive Land Use Plan consists of the stated goals and action plan as set out in this
document and the Town's land use regulations as adopted and amended by Town Council.  Other
officially adopted plans also constitute official components of this Plan including those plans listed
below. Please see the Appendix for relevant maps and materials and the Town's Code of Ordinances
for current land use regulations. Access for other materials, such as the Parks and Recreation Master
Plan, is provided at Town Hall or through the Town's website.

This Plan shall be automatically amended upon Town Council's adoption of amendments to the
Town's land use regulations (including specifically the subdivision and zoning regulations and zoning
map), adoption of or amendments to other plans directly or indirectly related to land use, or upon
direct action taken by Town Council to amend or update this Plan.

2657



ACTION PLAN BASED ON
STATED GOALS

[GOALS AND PRIORITIES TO BE
INSERTED WHEN COMPLETED]

2758



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
The project to update the Town's Comprehensive Land Use Plan was accomplished through
diligent efforts of the Town's elected leaders, appointed Planning and Zoning Board, and members
of Town staff listed below. While it has not been directly involved in this project, the Town would
be remiss in failing to recognize the Board of Adjustment that serves the citizens of Weaverville
by hearing and ruling on certain matters related to land use. Special thanks is also extended to all
department heads and others that have contributed their time, information and expertise in the
development of this important land use guidance document.

WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL

WEAVERVILLE PLANNING AND
ZONING BOARD

WEAVERVILLE TOWN MANAGER
SELENA D. COFFEY

WEAVERVILLE TOWN ATTORNEY
JENNIFER O. JACKSON

WEAVERVILLE PLANNING DIRECTOR
JAMES W. ELLER

AL  ROOT, MAYOR
DOUG JACKSON, VICE MAYOR

DOTTIE SHERRILL, COUNCILMEMBER
ANDREW NAGLE, COUNCILMEMBER

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, COUNCILMEMBER
JEFF McKENNA, COUNCILMEMBER

DOUG THEROUX, CHAIR
GARY BURGE, VICE CHAIR

CATHERINE CORDELL, MEMBER
PETER STANZ, MEMBER

STEVE WARREN, MEMBER
JOHN CHASE, MEMBER

TOM BALESTRIERI, MEMBER

3159



APPENDIX

60



A

61



I2
6

M
A

IN

AIKEN

DULA SPRINGS

US 25 70

REEMS CREEK

I2
6 

NEW STOCK

M
E

R
R

IM
O

N

MONTICELLO

LONGS CHAPEL
ELLER COVE

OLD MARSHALL

R
IC

E

W
EAVERVILLE

GOLDVIEW

CLARKS CHAPEL

P
E

G
G

M
U

N
D

Y
 C

O
V

E

D
O

G
W

O
O

D

CHURCH

AYERS

W
OODY STONEY KNOB

H
IL

LC
R

E
S

T

WEAVER

R
IVER

SID
E

BLEVINSH
E

R
R

O
N

 C
O

V
E

H
A

M
B

U
R

G
 M

O
U

N
TA

INSALEM

UNIO
N C

HAPEL

BRITTEN COVE

O
LL

IE
 W

E
AV

E
R

FAR
IDA

IN
D

IA
N

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

WOOTEN COVE

D
U

LA

P
U

G

P
IN

K
 F

O
X

 C
O

V
E

LAKESHORE

M
AR

TIN
 FO

R
D

B
U

N
C

O
M

B
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

Y
O

U
N

G

A
LP

IN
E

D
O

AN

PA
R

K
E

R

YO
ST

E
A

S
T

LAC
KEY

W
INDAGO

AN
D

ER
S

O
N

UPPER HERRON COVE

WILEY

V
A

N
N

A

GREENRIDGE

BROWN

H
AV

E
N

ALEXANDER

P
IN

E
 M

O
U

N
T

PA
R

K
E

R
 C

O
V

E

PINE

H
IG

H
 B

LU
FF

B
O

Y
D

S
 C

H
A

P
E

L R
IC

E
 C

O
V

E

SPIC
EW

O
O

D

HIDDEN FALLS

NOLA

S
A

G
E

T
E

A
B

E
R

R
Y

GILL

A
LS

TERRACE

G
E

N
TI

A
N

PATTI

P
E

N
N

Y

CENTRAL

P
IC

K
E

N
S

LO
F

T
IN

LAKEWAY

BANNISTER

H
AM

B
U

R
G

FOX CHASE

E
LL

E
R

 H
O

LL
O

W

WEST

N
EW

 C
O

VEN
AN

T

S
ILV

E
R

 F
IR

MORRIS

A
LC

AT
N

IE

PHILLY

VENTOSO RIDGE

SUMMERSIDE

TERRI

NICHOLS HILL

S
H

U
FO

R
D

RAY

BANKS TOWN

CRITTER

B
R

IG
M

A
N

R
ICE H

ILL

HALL

S
H

A
N

N
A

ROBIN

JO
S

IE

LONGSTREET

PLEASANT HILL

C
A

R
D

E
N

LO
F

T
Y

PENLEY PARK

NADER

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

CAM
SY

N

LE
IS

U
R

E

KN
O

LL
 R

ID
G

E

BLU
FF C

O
VE

RIDGEWAY

TIP
TON

GARRISON

FONTANA

S
H

E
IL

A

DOROTHY LILLE

HANNAH

SH
EL

W
O

O
D

NORTHCREST

SC
EN

IC
 VIEW

R
E

D
 M

A
P

LE

W
E

S
T

V
IE

W

M
AT

TI
E

STAN
LEY HO

LLO
W

P
R

E
S

T
O

N

LO
W

R
Y

B
A

LC
R

A
N

K

H
O

W
A

R
D

TR
IN

IT
Y

 H
IL

LS

RED COLE

BR
AN

D
O

N

I26

I2
6

U
S

 25 70

I26 

N
E

W
 S

TO
C

K

I26

O
LD

V
IE

W

I2
6

REEMS CREEK

HH

OOOWWN

PINNE

RRRRRAAAALLLL

EEESSSSSTTTTT

HH
E

OO

TRRR

EEST

RRRRR
RRRR

IM
O

N

CCCCHHHHUUUURR

SAALLEMM

H
IG

HH
LA

N
DD

AAKKESHORREE

YYYYOOOO
SST

BB

LL

CCCCEEN

O
F

T
IN

W

BANNNNKKS TTOWN

B

MMM
AATTTTAAAA

TTII
EE

R
A

N
KK

RRR

CHUURR

AAKK

BB

AALLLEXAN

ENN

LO

WWW

WN

B

R
A

N
KK

KEN

M

GGAA
RREEEMM

KEN

M

GAA

EEEMM

RRR

LE
RRR

I2
6

WW
EEEEEEEAAAVVAAA

EERRRVVVV B
O

Y
D

S
C

H
A

P
EA

B
E

R
RR

YY

KKNN
OO

LLLLL
RRR

IID
G

WWWW
OO

O
D LLOOOO

WWWW
RR

Y

I2
6

VI

P
EAA

G
E

WWW

RR
Y

WEAVA EEREEXANDER

EAVA EEREEXANDER

MM
A

INN

HH
AAM

B
U

CCRITTER

LLOONGSTREET
CC

HH
E

SSSS
TT

NN
UUUU

TT

LEE

R

PU

C

EET
EE

BBB
RRRREEDD

BBB
RRRR DD

DDDD
O

GG
WW

O
OO

DD

HH
IL

LLCC
R

E
S

T

M
OO

UU
NN

TATT
IN

UNNNIO
N CC

HAPEL

PP
UU

PPPP
IIIINN

K
F

O
X

C

E
A

HH
IG

H
BL

UF
F

CC
K

E
N

S

LLAAAKEWWAAAAWWW YAA

R
GG

HILL

SS
HH

U
FOO

R
D

RRAAAAYYYYYYAAAAASS
HH

CCC
AAA

RR
DD

EE
NN

PEENLEY PPPPPAAAAAARKK

CAM
SY

N

DOROTHY L
E

S
TT

VV
IIEE

WWWW

PP
RRR

EEEE
S

T
O

N

REEM

EL

P
UU

X
C

O

A
S

CCR
G

HILL

YYHH

DOROTHY LIL
E

TERR
RIDGB

A
LLC

TERRA
RIDGB

A
LLC

L

T I26

I2L

T 2

I2
RRR

EE
DD

M
A

COLE

BRR
A

O
AN

M
A

P

COLE

RR
A

HCREEH EES

25
7700

I2
6

CCCCELLO

O

GGGGGGIIIILL

P
E

N
NN

YY

NORT

25

II22
6

CCC O

O

GGGILLL

P
E

Y

RTT

UU

NEWW
SSTOCK

MMONT

R
IC

E

GOOLDVVIEW

CLAARKS CHAPEL

P
E

G
G

AYAA ERS

WW
OOOOODDYYYYY

LI
E

WW
E

AVAA
E

R

FAFF R
IIDDA

K
EE

NN
N

E

A
LP

IN
E

PPAAPPP
R

K
E

R

LAC
KEY

Y

V
A

VV
N

N
A

REENRIDGGE

H
AVVAA

E
N

P
IN

E
M

OO
UU

N
T

O
O

DD

HIDDEN FAFF
LLLLS

SS
AA

GG
EE

I

FFFOOXXX CCHAS

N
EEWW

C
O

VEN
AAN

TT

NIN CHOLS HILL

ROBBIN

JJOOO
SS

IE
PLEASANTT HILLLL

LLO
F

TTTT
YY

NNADER TIP
TOON

SC
EN

IICC
VVIIEE

NN
EE

WWW
S

TOO
C

K

W

UU

N

NT

ERSLI
E

N
E

N
E

PAP
R

K
E

R

Y

V
A

V

RE

H
AVVAA

E
N

O
O

D

TI

AS

N
E

N

H

EEW

W

H
AA

MM
BB

U
R

CE MMOORRRR

N
AAA

HH

RR

CCE
RRR

N
N

AAA

HH

ONGGSS CHAPELL
ELLERR

CO

SSTTOONEY KNOOB

BBLLEVINSHH
EE

RR
R

O
N

C
O

V
E

IN
D

IA
N C

O
V

E

LL
OO

WW

SSUM

F
CC

OO
VE

FONTTAATTTT NN

AA
W

R
D

CR
LONGG

CO

S

HH

C
O

LL

UM

F

ANNAA

WW
AA

WWW

CRE

DULA SPRINNGGS

BR

WOOOTEN COV

D
U

LA

HHALL

SSS
UUU

RRRR
EE

E
D

OO
N

R

OV

SSSS
U

E
D

O

62



 This land use classification represents the original core of the town including the central
business district and adjacent residential neighborhoods and transitional areas. A variety of
businesses and uses exist within this area to serve the needs of the community while
simultaneously drawing a larger population including tourists to the area. In the downtown core
restaurants, retail establishments, service establishments, specialty stores and galleries, and
civic and institutional are woven together within historic buildings active streets and creating an
atmosphere conducive to pedestrian activity. This core commercial area is often referenced for
its “small town charm” which is called to be specially protected and preserved within previous
iterations of the Town’s comprehensive land use plans.

Surrounding the downtown core are primarily single family residential neighborhoods that
contain historic bungalows and arts and craft style homes. Scattered within these areas are
several historic churches and new residential construction. Other residential areas include the
Reems Creek Golf Course, Reems Creek Villages, Hamburg Mountain, Woodland Hills and more
dense residential developments such as Creekside Village, Hamburg Crossing and Kyfields.
Future residential areas are defined on the Future Land Use Map as areas that support further
residential construction and the character of these areas can be respected by observing the
dimensional standards of the zoning district in which they are located.

This land use classification is intended to identify and reinforce the existing general commercial
land use patterns. The Town’s four primary commercial areas are, in addition to the downtown
core, North Main Street and Five Points, Northridge Commons, Weaver Boulevard and
Southern Merrimon near intersection of Merrimon Avenue and Garrison Road. These defined
areas serve different roles for the community with Northridge Commons serving are regional
retail role with national retail establishments, Weaver Boulevard serving a mix of local and
regional retail role and North Main Street and Five Point and Southern Merrimon who have a
smaller local retail role.

Land designated for future industrial land use are such areas which have already been
developed for such a purpose. Given the topography of the area, large scale development sites
such as these are rare and may prove to be an asset to the Town even as the manufacturing
economy evolves. Given the close proximity of these sites to present residential development,
the Town’s focus on such future industrial development should be on light industrial uses with
few, if any, external environmental impacts.

Areas shown as mixed use on the Future Land Use Map are where the town has experienced a
variety of development pressures ranging from high density single family residential
development and multifamily residential development to local retail establishments and
restaurants. These areas include Monticello Road, North Buncombe School Road and Reems
Creek Road. There is a belief that these particular developments can coexist in such
environments and that they will continue to increase in these areas due to the transportation
and utility infrastructure present.

FUTURE LAND USE MAP
USE CATEGORIES  DESCRIPTIONS

DOWNTOWN

RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

MIXED USE

When the future land use map is consulted the following descriptions of land use types
shall be assumed and used:

63



64



I2
6

M
A

IN

M
E

R
R

IM
O

NAIKEN

D
O

G
W

O
O

D

CHURCH

AYER
S

STONEY KNOB

WEAVER

H
IL

LC
R

E
S

T

SALEM

LONGS CHAPEL

IN
D

IA
N

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

O
LL

IE
 W

E
AV

E
R

REEM
S C

REEK

D
U

LA

P
U

G

DULA SPRINGS

H
A

M
B

U
R

G
 M

O
U

N
TA

IN

LAKESHORE

ALPINE

U
N

IO
N

 C
H

A
P

E
L

US 25 70

G
IL

L 
B

R
A

N
C

H

YO
ST

MOORE

LAC
KEY

MONTICELLO

ALEXANDER

H
E

R
R

O
N

 C
O

V
E

BROWN

PI
NK 

FO
X C

O
VE

H
AV

E
N

PINE

H
IG

H
 B

LU
FF

CLARKS CHAPEL

B
O

Y
D

S
 C

H
A

P
E

L

PA
R

K
E

R
 C

O
V

E

EAST

C
O

LE

R
O

B
E

R
T

S

T
E

A
B

E
R

R
Y

E
LLE

R
 C

O
V

E

GILL

TERRACE

PIN
EBROOK

AD
AS

P
E

N
N

Y

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 O

A
K

CENTRAL

B
R

IA
R

W
O

O
D

P
IC

K
E

N
S VA

N
 S

TO
R

Y
LO

F
T

IN

LAKEWAY

H
A

M
B

U
R

G

W
EAVERVILLE

FO
X

 C
H

A
S

E

C
O

D
Y

CLINTON

WEST

MORRIS
VALL

EY

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

T
W

IN
 H

ILLS

PHILLY

A
P

P
LE

C
R

O
S

S

S
H

U
FO

R
D

RAYGROVE

BANKS TOWN

C
O

LLE
G

E

S
H

A
N

N
A

LONGSTREET

AL D
O

R
F

B
A

LLA
R

D

C
A

R
D

E
N

LO
F

T
Y

LO
R

ID
O

N

HOPE

PARK

CO
URSEVIE

W

B
A

IR
D

 M
O

U
N

TA
IN

WILDWOOD

R
O

B
IN

W
O

O
D

BR
AN

K

CAM
SYN

LE
IS

U
R

E

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T
 G

R
O

V
E

S
A

LE
M

 A
C

R
E

S

P
O

N
D

E
R

C
O

R
N

E
LIA

RIDGEWAY

LO
ST C

OVE

TIPTON

D
E

E
P

 W
O

O
D

S

SHADOW

DOROTHY LILLE

C
A

N
D

LE
W

O
O

D

CRITTER

KYFIELDS

S
T

IL
L

FL
IC

K
E

RP
E

R
R

IO
N

H
E

R
M

ITA
G

E

S
P

R
IN

G
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

LU
C

K
Y

 G
A

P

CREEKSIDE

B
R

U
S

H
W

O
O

D

W
E

S
T

V
IE

W

H
Y

E
R

NORTHCREST

P
R

E
S

T
O

N

B
R

IT
T

IA
N

D
E

A
C

O
N

P
IN

K
 F

O
X

TW
IN

 C
O

U
RTS

ELK

FORTRESS

HEATHER

BA
LC

R
AN

K

BIR
KDALE

H
O

W
A

R
D

I26 E TO US 25 70 HWY

SENECA

RED COLE

ORCHID HILL

S
O

N
G

 B
IR

D

H
IC

K
O

R
Y

REAGAN

M
E

T
C

A
LF

K
IT

T
Y

GARRISON

SERENDIPITY

ZE
LL

W
O

O
D

T
H

O
R

N

PINNACLE PARK

WOODLAND HILLS

T
R

IC
K

LE
 C

R
E

E
K

H
I LAN

D
A AC

R
ES

A B EMBLEM

BR
A

N
D

O
N

LAKEVIEW

OAK GLEN

I2
6

AYER
S

TE
R

R
A

C
E

HAMBURG

REEMS CREEK

MONTICELLO

P
IN

K
 F

O
X

 C
O

V
E

VAN STORY

AIKEN

MONTICELLO

WILDWOOD

E
A

S
T

REEMS CREEK

Town of Weaverville Limits

65



I2
6

M
A

IN

AIKEN

DULA SPRINGS

US 25 70

REEMS CREEK

I2
6 

NEW STOCK

M
E

R
R

IM
O

N

MONTICELLO

LONGS CHAPEL
ELLER COVE

OLD MARSHALL

R
IC

E

W
EAVERVILLE

GOLDVIEW

CLARKS CHAPEL

P
E

G
G

M
U

N
D

Y
 C

O
V

E

D
O

G
W

O
O

D

CHURCH

AYERS

W
OODY STONEY KNOB

H
IL

LC
R

E
S

T

WEAVER

R
IVER

SID
E

BLEVINSH
E

R
R

O
N

 C
O

V
E

H
A

M
B

U
R

G
 M

O
U

N
TA

INSALEM

UNIO
N C

HAPEL

BRITTEN COVE

O
LL

IE
 W

E
AV

E
R

FAR
IDA

IN
D

IA
N

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

WOOTEN COVE

D
U

LA

P
U

G

P
IN

K
 F

O
X

 C
O

V
E

LAKESHORE

M
AR

TIN
 FO

R
D

B
U

N
C

O
M

B
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

Y
O

U
N

G

A
LP

IN
E

D
O

AN

PA
R

K
E

R

YO
ST

E
A

S
T

LAC
KEY

W
INDAGO

AN
D

ER
S

O
N

UPPER HERRON COVE

WILEY

V
A

N
N

A

GREENRIDGE

BROWN

H
AV

E
N

ALEXANDER

P
IN

E
 M

O
U

N
T

PA
R

K
E

R
 C

O
V

E

PINE

H
IG

H
 B

LU
FF

B
O

Y
D

S
 C

H
A

P
E

L R
IC

E
 C

O
V

E

SPIC
EW

O
O

D

HIDDEN FALLS

NOLA

S
A

G
E

T
E

A
B

E
R

R
Y

GILL

A
LS

TERRACE

G
E

N
TI

A
N

PATTI

P
E

N
N

Y

CENTRAL

P
IC

K
E

N
S

LO
F

T
IN

LAKEWAY

BANNISTER

H
AM

B
U

R
G

FOX CHASE

E
LL

E
R

 H
O

LL
O

W

WEST

N
EW

 C
O

VEN
AN

T

S
ILV

E
R

 F
IR

MORRIS

A
LC

AT
N

IE

PHILLY

VENTOSO RIDGE

SUMMERSIDE

TERRI

NICHOLS HILL

S
H

U
FO

R
D

RAY

BANKS TOWN

CRITTER

B
R

IG
M

A
N

R
ICE H

ILL

HALL

S
H

A
N

N
A

ROBIN

JO
S

IE

LONGSTREET

PLEASANT HILL

C
A

R
D

E
N

LO
F

T
Y

PENLEY PARK

NADER

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

CAM
SY

N

LE
IS

U
R

E

KN
O

LL
 R

ID
G

E

BLU
FF C

O
VE

RIDGEWAY

TIP
TON

GARRISON

FONTANA

S
H

E
IL

A

DOROTHY LILLE

HANNAH

SH
EL

W
O

O
D

NORTHCREST

SC
EN

IC
 VIEW

R
E

D
 M

A
P

LE

W
E

S
T

V
IE

W

M
AT

TI
E

STAN
LEY HO

LLO
W

P
R

E
S

T
O

N

B
A

LC
R

A
N

K

H
O

W
A

R
D

TR
IN

IT
Y

 H
IL

LS

RED COLE

BR
AN

D
O

N

I26

I2
6

U
S

 25 70

I26 

N
E

W
 S

TO
C

K

I26

G
O

LD
V

IE
W

I2
6

REEMS CREEK
UUS

LO
NORTT

LO
RTT

GGGGGGGIIIIILLLLLL
GG LL

T I26

LLLLL

STT I26
LLLLLL

OOO A

TTHCREESSTTTT

AA

TT ESSSTTTTTT SSSTT

SAALLEMM

H
IG

HH
LA

N
DD

LLEXANDER

H
A

N

AALLLEXANDER

WEAVAAAAALLLEEXANDER

AAAALLEEXANDER

AAAALLEXXAAND
VEV MM

A
INN

EERRRREE

N

EEVVE

HH
IG

HHHH
IG

HH
EE

RRRR
RRRR

IM
O

E
M

O
N

OOOO
N

OO

LLO
F

T
IN

M
O

M
OOOO

LLO
F

T
IN

M
O

M
OOOO

N
OOOOO

N LLOLON LLO
F

LOLLOENNNNNNNAAIIIKKEN

INNN

N

F
TT

EEENAIK

F
T

IN
T

N
F

T
IN

KEN

F

ENNENEENNE

GGAAR

RREE

GAA
R

R

E

DDW
EE

W

M
E

EEEEEEAAAVVAAA
EERRRVVVVILLE

KKNN
OO

LLLLL
RRR

IID
G

E

EEEMM

EE
M

E

EEEE

EEEEE
WW

K ILL

E

L

EE
RRRR

EE

L

EEEMMEEEEE

E

D

EEE
W

EE

RRRIRRRISRRRRR

NNNKKNN

BLL

CREEKK

LL

EEKK
CRCRERERRECRERRECRE

EEMS C
EEEEMMS CC
EEMMSEEEMMEEMMMEEE

CCC

AA
MM

BB
U

R
AA

U
R

RAAAC

AAAAA

RRRAAC

AAAA

OWOW

YYOOOO
SST

NKS TTOWNNN

MM

NK
OWOW

YYOO

N

MMM

KKS
WNN

ST

NKKNK
TTOOWWOOWW

P

AAAALLLLAAAL

P

L

E

CCCCHHHHUUUURRCCHH

Y

E
A

S
TT

BBRROOWWN

R

CCCCEENNTTTRRRRRAA

WWWWEESSSST

MM
AATTTTAAAA

TTII
EE

RR
AA

N
KK

A
DD

RR

D

RRR

CCCHHCCCCHH

AA

TTTT

E

YY

R

MM
A

N
DD

RR

A
N

D

RRRR

WWEE TT

N
K

OOWWN

A

C
RR

Y

H

AAAAAAAAAA

CCCC

NN
D COLDD COL

P

HH
AAM

B
U

LLOONGSTREET
HH

ET

PU

PINNE

RITTE

CC
HH

E
SSSS

TT
NN

UUUU
T

P

CCRR

HHH

PPPP

TE

H

CCCC

HH
A

H
TTTT

WWAAAAWWWAW

EEEEEEER
HH

IL
LLCC

R
E

S
T

UNNNIO

PPPPP
IIIINN

K

HH
IG

H
BL

UF
F

LLAAAKEW Y

CCC
AAA

RR
DD

EE
NN

EENLEY PPPPAAAAARKK

CAM
SY

N

THY

PP
RRR

EEEE
S

T
O

N

WAYAAYWWAYAA

IN

R

AEEN

TH

IO

PP
IN

K

SY
N

Y

EWWWWAYAW YA
STTTTTTSSTTTTTT

LLE
GG

L
E

LLELE
GAGG

LLE
LLE

AAARRRRARRRRRRRRAAAARRARRRRRRAA

66



2018-2021 STRATEGIC PLAN IN BRIEF
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Goal 1:  Provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

Goal 5:  Increase legislative outreach. 

Goal 2:  Improve regional collaboration. 

Asheville Rede ines Transit

Goal 3:  Maintain balance in land use planning efforts. 

Goal 4:  Promote a successful downtown. 

67



36
A

68



69



 2018 Master Plan      21  

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

2

3

4

5

6

Develop Maintenance 
Plan

Construct Indoor 
Recreation Space

Implement Recreation 
Programming

Build Multisport Surfaces

Support Greenways

Enhance Marketing 
Efforts

Based on the demographic analysis, public input, 
evaluation of existing facilities, and Town staff input, the 
following recommendations were developed.  

70



22     Town of Weaverville Parks and Recreation

1: DEVELOP MAINTENANCE PLAN
The purpose of the Maintenance Plan is to 
clearly define the requirements and actions of 
the Town of Weaverville for maintaining parks, 
open spaces, trails, and recreation sites and 
assets over the next 10 years. The Maintenance 
Plan is intended to enable the Town of 
Weaverville to improve the identification, 
justification, and prioritization of maintenance 
requirements for park and recreation sites and 
assets.  

Common elements of a maintenance plan:
• Parks and Recreation Department

Maintenance Objectives
• Recommended Best Practices
• Site and Facility Design Issues
• Specific Design Issues at Existing Parks
• Regular Maintenance
• Current Regular Maintenance Resource

Requirements
• Projecting Future Requirements Capital

Repair and Replacement
• Park Maintenance, Trail Maintenance,

Open Space Maintenance, Facility
Maintenance

• Priorities for Levels of Service

2: CONSTRUCT NEW RECREATION 
CENTER
Based on survey results, the majority of residents 
appeared to be pleased with the Town’s 
outdoor recreation spaces, but did not agree 
that the Town has sufficient indoor recreation 
activity space. 

A well-functioning recreation center can act as 
a hub for events, activities, and civic occasions.  
The former recreation center had a number of 
building code and safety health hazard issues 
and was demolished in December 2017. Based 
on survey results and community input, there is a 
strong interest in a new community building for 
indoor recreation and event space.  The survey 
results and public input session also indicated 
that there is a need for better restroom facilities 
at Lake Louise.  This issue can be addressed by 
including publicly accessible restrooms on the 
inside and outside of a new recreation center.

Some possible uses for a new recreation center 
include:
• Arts and crafts for all ages
• Sports and fitness classes for all ages
• Tennis and pickleball
• Summer camp
• Youth sports clinics
• Yoga and Martial arts
• Civic group meetings
• Farmers market
• Public restrooms
• Computer and internet access for the public

and/or school students
• Community/bulletin board

3: IMPLEMENT PROGRAMMING
Programming can play a vital role in providing 
residents with recreational opportunities and 
engaging them in parks.  The programs do 
not have to be run by the Town. The Town can 
partner with community organizations to lead 
the activities. The Town’s main role can be to 
provide the indoor and/or outdoor space.  For 
example, during the public input session, some 
residents expressed an interest in having a 
community movie night in one of the parks. The 71



 2018 Master Plan      23  

coordination and marketing of such an event 
can be handled by community members and 
the Town can provide access to the park for 
the event, general oversight and maintenance.

Generally, park programming falls within the 
following categories:
• Mind body/balance programs
• Fitness programs
• Educational programs
• Day camps & summer camps
• Environmental education
• Teen programming
• Adult sports teams
• Active older adult programs
• Holidays & other special events
• Nutrition & diet counseling
• Outdoor movies

4: BUILD MULTISPORT SURFACES FOR 
BASKETBALL AND TENNIS AT LAKE 
LOUISE PARK
Hard playing surfaces are limited on Town-
owned facilities.  Consider installing a 
multipurpose court that can be used for 
basketball, tennis, or kickball.  The surface 
could also be used for activities and events, 
particularly if it is located near public restrooms 
and/or a new recreation center.

5: CONTINUE TO SUPPORT 
GREENWAYS
Continue to work with Buncombe County 
Recreation Services to expedite the process 
of creating the Reems Creek Greenway.  
The Greenway will provide enhanced bike 
and pedestrian access to Lake Louise Park 
and provide added recreational amenities 

for residents.  Consider forming a Greenway 
Committee or active group to assist the town 
plan and implement connections and foster 
interest in residents. Stay informed and in contact 
with the French Broad River Metropolitan Planning 
Organization about funding opportunities.

6: ENHANCED MARKETING EFFORTS
Most of these marketing efforts build on existing 
Town resources.  The Town has a website which 
can include more parks and recreation materials 
like maps and more details about amenities.  The 
Town also has social media that can be updated 
more frequently with parks and recreation 
information.  The recreation software is a longer 
term goal and may only be needed if the Town 
starts to manager park programming.

1. Utilize the Town’s recreation software –
Software, such as the new CivicRec, provides
the option to communicate with current or
past registrants via mass email or text alerts.

2. Social Media – Facebook, Twitter, Pinterest
and other social media platforms are all easy,
free ways to communicate with citizens.

3. Targeted flyers/postcards – Post flyers around
town.

4. Discounts – Do special offers for event and
space rentals.  If the Town offers programs
that charge a fee, then the town could offer
discounted rates for special occasions.

5. Website – Provide more detailed information
about each park, and also detailed maps.  It
is recommended to have a large format web
page and smaller maps that residents can
print out.

72



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
FACT SHEET Prepared November 2018 

Sources:  2010 US Census, 2016 American Community Survey, 2017 Population Estimate Program 
Weaverville Departmental Data 

POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS
2010 2016 2018 Estimate* Total Change**

Total Population 3120 3911 (+791, 25%) 4,734  (+823, 21%) 1,614 (+52%) 
Growth Rate 25% 52% 
Population Density 836 per sq. mi. 1229 per sq. mi. 

(+393, 47%) 
1489 per sq. mi. 
(+260, 21%) 

+ 78%

Median Age 51.4 52.6 +1.2
Young Child Age 3% 
School Age 17% 12% - 5%
Working Age 55% 53% - 2%
Retirement Age 28% 32% + 4%
Household Size 2.13 2.12 
Family Size 2.66 
Registered Voters 2,482 3,225 3,347 
Workforce 1,584 

BASIC INFORMATION ON LAND
2010 2016 2018 Total Change 

Base Land Area 1,983.06 acres 2,034.87 acres 51.81 acres 
(5 annexations) 

Real Property 
Value

$481,786,300 $541,181,800 (+12%) $750,820,030 
(+39%)

+56%

Personal Property 
Value 

$150,966,630 $85,154,549  (-44%) $54,773,458 
(-36%) 

-64%

Satellite 
Annexation Area 

37.54 Acres =  
1.8 % of total 
incorporated area 

HOUSING PROFILE
2010 2016 2018 Estimate * Total Change**

Housing Stock 1,330 1,923 (+593) 2233 (+310) + 903 (68%)
% of Housing Stock 
Occupied 

91% 91% 

Owner Occupied 81% 81% - 
Renter Occupied 19% 19% - 
Single Family 81% 85% (+4) 80% (-5%) -1%
Multifamily 14% 14% 19% +5%
Mobile Home 5% 1% 1% -4%
Housing Value $242,600 $241,000 (-1%) $335,000 (+39%) +38%

73



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
FACT SHEET Prepared November 2018 

Sources:  2010 US Census, 2016 American Community Survey, 2017 Population Estimate Program 
Weaverville Departmental Data 

EDUCATION CHARACTERISTICS/INCOME
2010 2016 Total Change** 

Education – High School Diploma Only 22% 18% -5%
Education – Age 25+, Some College Education 70% 79% +9%
Education – Age 25+, Bachelor’s Degree 26% 24% -2%
Education – Age 25+, Graduate or Professional Degree 17% 25% +8%
Median Income $47,391 $53,072 +$5,681 (+12%) 
Poverty Rate 9.4% 5.3% - 4.1%

GOVERNMENTAL INFRASTRUCTURE
Municipal Streets 19.36 Miles 

Sidewalks 5.9 Miles 
Water Lines 66 Miles 

Water Meters 2,769 
Fire Hydrants 370 

Trails 1.39 Miles 
Park Acreage 20.14 

Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Acreage 310 
Proposed Reems Creek Greenway 1.7 Miles 

Elevation 2,160 

COMPARATIVE DATA 

* Estimates based on Town of Weaverville Departmental Data
**  Total Change compares to 2010 data

2017 
Population 

Estimate Median Age
Number of 
Companies

% High 
School 

Graduate or 
Higher

Total Housing 
Units

Median 
Houshold 

Income
Foreign Born 
Population

Individuals 
Below 

poverty level

Buncombe Co. 257,607 41.7 28,498 90.0% 115,984 $46,902 13,585 14.8%
Weaverville 3,911 52.6 1,052 97.9% 1,923 $53,072 106 5.3%
Woodfin 6,489 35.8 508 86.9% 2,626 $36,114 297 22.3%
Black Mtn. 8,150 50.8 935 92.6% 4,201 $41,807 99 12.1%
Asheville 91,902 38.0 12,785 92.2% 41,380 $44,946 5,775 16.2%
Madison Co. 21,746 43.9 1,741 82.5% 10,698 $40,408 488 16.6%
Marshall 872 41.5 N/A 86.0% 523 $31,250 14 21.0%
Mars Hill 2,118 23.8 N/A 91.8% 748 $42,941 21 24.6%

74



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN 
RECORD OF AMENDMENTS

DATE DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT SECTIONS AFFECTED 

75



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN PROJECT 

PROJECT OVERVIEW  
PHASE DESCRIPTION SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG  Launch – Authorization to Proceed             
Phase I Info/Data Gathering and Analysis               

Governing Body Policy Discussions             
Phase II Staff Preliminary Draft of Plan             
Ph III Community Review and Input             
Ph IV Planning Board Review and Input             

Governing Board Review and Input             
Joint Meetings with Planning Board             

Phase V Final Draft of Plan             
Governing Body Review             
Adoption             

 
PROJECT STAFF: James Eller, Planning Director 
   Jennifer Jackson, Town Attorney  
 
PLAN DOCUMENTS CONSULTED:  Weaverville Strategic Plan (2014-2017), Weaverville Strategic Plan (2018-2021), Weaverville 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan (2008, 2012), Weaverville Parks and Recreation Master Plan (2018), 
Reems Creek Greenway Feasibility Study (2014), Weaverville Water System Plans, Metropolitan 
Sewerage District Plans, NC Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (2018-2027) 

 
RESOURCE AGENCIES: US Census Bureau, State of North Carolina, NCDOT Division 13, Buncombe County, Town of Weaverville, Land of Sky 

Regional Council, Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, Asheville Redefines Transit, Mountain 
Mobility, Connect Buncombe 

 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD: Doug Theroux, Gary Burge, Catherine Cordell, Peter Stanz, Steve Warren, John Chase, Tom Balestrieri 
(REVIEWING BOARD)   
 
ANTICIPATED BUDGET:  < $3,000 

76




